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1.  GLOSSARY 

 “ACMPR” means the Access to Cannabis for Medical Purposes Regulations (Canada) issued pursuant to the 
Controlled Drugs and Substances Act (Canada). 

“Audit Committee” means the Audit Committee of the Corporation in accordance with National Instrument 52-110 
Audit Committees. 

“cannabis” has the meaning given to such term in the ACMPR. 

“cannabis oil” has the meaning given to such term in the ACMPR. 

“Board of Directors” or “Board” means the board of directors of the Corporation. 

“CBD” means cannabidiol. 

“CBN” means cannabinol. 

“CDSA” means the Controlled Drugs and Substances Act (Canada). 

“CEO” means chief executive officer. 

“CFO” means chief financial officer. 

“client” has the meaning given to such term in the ACMPR. 

“Common Shares” means the common shares in the capital of the Corporation. 

“Convertible Debenture” has the meaning set out in Section 9, Options to Purchase Securities. 

“Corporation” means TerrAscend Corp. 

“CSE” means the Canadian Securities Exchange. 

“Cultivation Licence” means the licence to be issued by Health Canada to Solace, if granted, designating the Solace 
as a Licensed Producer, allowing Solace to produce marijuana. 

“dried marijuana” has the meaning given to the term “dried marihuana” in the ACMPR. 

“g” means a gram. 

“IFRS” means International Financial Reporting Standards. 

“kg” means a kilogram. 

“Licences” means the Sales Licence and the Cultivation Licence together. 

“Licensed Dealer” has the meaning given to such term in the NCR. 

“Licensed Producer” means the holder of a licence issued under section 35 of the ACMPR. 

“Management” means the management of the Corporation. 

“marijuana” has the meaning given to the term “marihuana” in the ACMPR. 

“MD&A” means Management’s Discussion and Analysis included in this Listing Statement. 
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“Medical Marijuana” has the meaning set out in Section 3, General Development of the Business. 

“Minister” means the Federal Minister of Health (Canada). 

“MMAR” means the Marihuana Medical Access Regulations (Canada). 

“MMPR” means the Marihuana for Medical Purposes Regulations (Canada). 

“Named Executive Officers” or “NEOs” means the Corporation’s CEO and CFO and the next two next most highly 
compensated executive officers of the Corporation who are currently serving as executive officers. 

“NCR” means the Narcotic Control Regulations (Canada) issued pursuant to the CDSA. 

“NI 51-110” means National Instrument 51-110 Audit Committees. 

“OBCA” means the Business Corporations Act (Ontario). 

“Private Placement” means the non-brokered private placement offering of up to 2,250,000 Solace Shares at a price 
of $0.60 per share for aggregate gross proceeds of up to $1,350,000. 

“Production Facility” means TerrAscend Group’s 67,300 sqft Production Facility with an anticipated level 10 security 
certification vault located in Mississauga, Ontario. 

“Sales Licence” means the licence to be issued by Health Canada to Solace, if granted, designating Solace as a 
Licensed Producer, allowing it to sell marijuana. 

“Share Exchange” means the share exchange transaction completed March 8, 2017 pursuant to which each of the 
shareholders of Solace exchanged their Solace Shares for Common Shares. 

“Solace” means Solace Health Inc., the Corporation’s wholly-owned subsidiary.  

“Solace Shares” means common shares of Solace. 

“Stock Option Plan” means the 10% rolling stock option plan of the Corporation as more particularly described under 
Section 9, Options to Purchase Securities. 

“sqft” means square feet. 

“TerrAscend Group” means the Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Solace. 

“THC” means Delta-9-tetrahydrocannabinol. 

“U.S.” means the United States of America. 

“U.S. Securities Act” means United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended. 

2.  CORPORATE STRUCTURE 

2.1 Corporate Name 

The full corporate name of the Corporation is TerrAscend Corp. The principal and registered office of TerrAscend 
Group is located at 3610 Mavis Road, Mississauga, Ontario, L5C 1W2. 

2.2 Incorporation 

On February 18, 2014 Solace was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) as “Solace Health 
Inc.”. Solace amended its articles on September 11, 2014 to complete a subdivision of its common shares on a 



TerrAscend Corp. CSE Form 2A – Listing Statement | P a g e 5 
April 26, 2017 

10,000:1 basis. On June 30, 2015, Solace amended its articles to create an unlimited number of Class A shares and 
up to 18,000,000 Class B shares. On December 9, 2016, Solace amended its articles to provide an unlimited number 
of Class B shares and restated the terms of such Class B shares. On February 27, 2017, Solace amended its articles 
to remove its existing non-voting common shares and Class A shares, and rename its Class B shares as ‘common 
shares’ of Solace.  

On March 7, 2017, the Corporation was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) as “TerrAscend 
Corp.”. On March 8, 2017, the shareholders of Solace completed the Share Exchange and, as a result, Solace 
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation. 

2.3 Intercorporate Relationships 

Solace is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation. Other than Solace, the Corporation does not hold any other 
material subsidiaries. 

2.4 Fundamental Change 

This section is not applicable to TerrAscend Group.  

2.5 Non-Canadian Governing Legislation 

This section is not applicable to TerrAscend Group.  

3. GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE BUSINESS 

3.1 Business of TerrAscend Group 

Solace, since incorporation, has been involved in preparing and filing its application to Health Canada to become a 
Licensed Producer. The ACMPR licensing process includes six stages: Preliminary Screening, Enhanced Screening, 
Security Clearance, Review, Pre-Licence Inspection and Licensing.  Solace recently received a request for a Pre-
Licence Inspection of its 67,300 sqft Production Facility located in Mississauga, Ontario, which will serve not only as 
TerrAscend Group’s initial Production Facility for growing and cultivating medicinal cannabis, but also as TerrAscend 
Group’s principal distribution center.  The issuance of the Licences under the ACMPR is dependent in part upon the 
successful completion of the Pre-Licence Inspection by Health Canada of the Production Facility. Management 
anticipates the completion of the Pre-Licence inspection on or about June 2017.  

TerrAscend Group believes it is well positioned to obtain the Licences and acquire patients to support its business 
model and continues to add in-house expertise for operations, production, management and professional services 
requirements, and further develop its client acquisition strategy with strategic partnerships. 

The primary source of revenue for TerrAscend Group will be direct sales through TerrAscend Group’s online store 
with phone sales as a secondary source to valid medical marijuana patients within Canada. At present, TerrAscend 
Group does not anticipate engaging in any business activities outside of Canada. TerrAscend Group also has no 
current plans to engage in any activities related to recreational marijuana. 

Development 

Between December 9, 2016 and January 11, 2017, Solace completed a private placement financing of 8,987,240 
Solace Shares at $0.45 per share for aggregate gross proceeds of $3,999,322. 

On January 31, 2017, Solace acquired a 67,300 sqft Production Facility located in Mississauga, Ontario which is 
intended to serve not only as TerrAscend Group’s initial Production Facility for growing and cultivating medicinal 
cannabis, but also as TerrAscend Group’s principal distribution center. The Production Facility was purchased for 
$6,900,000 and is secured by a first charge security interest over the property in favour of MMCAP International Inc. 
SPC.  

Concurrent with the purchase of the Production Facility, Solace completed a private placement financing of the 
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Convertible Debenture for aggregate gross proceeds of $9,400,000. A portion of the proceeds from the debenture 
financing were applied towards the purchase of the Production Facility. Effective April 24, 2017, the Convertible 
Debenture was cancelled and reissued from the Corporation in the aggregate principal amount of $9,648,160 
representing the initial principal amount of $9,400,000 plus interest that had accrued to such date.   

On January 30, 2017, Solace commenced a non-brokered private placement offering of up to 2,250,000 Solace 
Shares at $0.60 per share for maximum gross proceeds of $1,350,000 (the “Private Placement”). The purpose of 
the Private Placement was to fund working capital and to ensure a sufficient number of shareholders in order to meet 
the minimum listing requirements of the CSE. Pursuant to the incorporation of the Corporation and, subsequently, 
the Share Exchange, on or around March 14, 2017, the subscribers in the Private Placement were sent a notice 
allowing them to amend their initial subscription for Solace Shares and instead purchase Common Shares or 
otherwise cancel their subscription and have their subscription funds returned. As of the date hereof, all subscribers 
have amended their subscriptions and a total of 2,250,000 Common Shares have been purchased, representing 
maximum gross proceeds of $1,350,000. On April 13, 2017, the Corporation having satisfied the trust release 
conditions, the Private Placement was closed. 

The Production Facility 

On January 31, 2017, Solace acquired a 67,300 sqft Production Facility with a proposed level 10 security vault located 
in Mississauga, Ontario. It is intended that the Production Facility will be used initially to cultivate and produce Medical 
Marijuana, and will also facilitate TerrAscend Group’s centralized distribution of Medical Marijuana. 

When fully operational, the Production Facility will provide TerrAscend Group with approximately 50,500 sqft of 
cultivation and production and processing space, 9,500 sqft devoted to research and development, and 7,300 sqft of 
office space.  

The Production Facility is currently being built out in three separate accretive development phases. During phase 
one TerrAscend Group will operate out of two 2,000 sqft flower rooms consisting of five rolling tables each with a total 
per room production capacity of 61.0 kg – 96.0 kg per production cycle. Management anticipates that each flowering 
room will be on a 10-week production cycle enabling 5 production cycles per year. Management believes that based 
on these estimates, the total annual production capacity of the Production Facility under phase one to be between 
610 kg – 960 kg per year. Upon completion of phases two and three, the total annual production capacity of the 
Production Facility is anticipated to increase to between 2,135 kg – 3,360 kg per year in phase two, and between 
3,965 kg – 6,240 kg per year in phase three. 

As per Health Canada regulations, the Production Facility will contain one vault that is anticipated to be designated 
as security level 10, which allows storage of up to 15,000 kg or $150,000,000 worth of dried cannabis on site at any 
given time. The Production Facility’s vault will be equipped with security features reflective of its security level 
classification and to ensure compliance with Health Canada’s security requirements.  

Products 

Management believes that, based on TerrAscend Group’s application process achievements to date, there is a strong 
likelihood that Solace will be issued the Licences by Health Canada. Upon receipt of the Cultivation Licence, 
TerrAscend Group anticipates cultivating and producing 4-8 select strains of medicinal marijuana and, upon receipt 
of a Sales Licence, TerrAscend Group will sell and distribute Medical Marijuana to registered patients and other 
parties permitted under the ACMPR. 

Medical Marijuana Industry 

Medical Marijuana (meaning the use of cannabis to treat disease or improve symptoms such as pain, muscle 
spasticity, nausea and other indications) can be administered using a variety of methods including, but not limited to, 
vaporizing or smoking dried buds, capsules, and oral/dermal sprays, and can also be ingested as oil or cannabis 
edibles. Unlike the pharmaceutical options, individual elements within Medical Marijuana have not been isolated, 
concentrated and synthetically manipulated to deliver a specific therapeutic effect. Instead Medical Marijuana 
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addresses ailments holistically through the synergistic action of naturally occurring phytochemicals. Currently, the 
most common means of administering Medical Marijuana in Canada is by smoking dried buds. 

Sativa and Indica are the two main types of cannabis, hybrid strains can be created when the genetics of each are 
crossed. Within these different types of cannabis there are many different varieties, within which there are many 
different cannabinoids, with the most common being delta-9-tetrahydrocannabinol (“THC”) the psychoactive 
ingredient and cannabidiol (“CBD”), which is responsible for many of the non-psychoactive effects of Medical 
Marijuana.  

In most parts of the world, recreational use of cannabis is illegal, however use of medicinal marijuana or derivatives 
thereof is legal to varying degrees in countries including Australia, Austria, Canada, Columbia, Czech Republic, 
Finland, Germany, Israel, Italy, the Netherlands, Portugal, Uruguay and the United States (use of which is prohibited 
under federal law, however 28 states and the District of Columbia no longer prosecute individuals for the possession 
or sale of Medical Marijuana, as long as the individuals are in compliance with the state’s Medical Marijuana sale 
regulations).  

Licensed Producers and Patients 

As of the date of this Listing Statement, according to Health Canada there are 43 Licensed Producers with a licence 
to sell cannabis to patients. Further, as of September 30, 2016, there were a total of 98,460 patients registered with 
the Licensed Producers, indicating a growth rate of 31% quarter over quarter. According to Health Canada, the total 
number of patients in the ACMPR or successor programs is expected to reach approximately 450,000 by 2024. A full 
list of Licensed Producers can be found on Health Canada’s website at www.hc-sc.gc.ca.  

According to Health Canada, sales of dried marijuana in the 12 calendar months leading up to and including the third 
quarter of 2016 were 14,373 kg, compared to 11,473 kg for the 12 months leading up to and including the second 
quarter of 2016. This represents a 25% quarter over quarter growth in total volume of dried marijuana. A total of 6,704 
kg of dried marijuana were sold in 2015. 

Competition 

In the near term, TerrAscend Group expects to compete with other Licensed Producers in Canada. TerrAscend Group 
believes that the existing regulatory framework and the capital costs associated with developing production facilities 
and maintaining operations will cause the number of Licensed Producers to remain relatively flat over the short term. 
Over the medium-longer term, Management anticipates that competition from new entrants will increase as existing 
applications in queue with Health Canada are processed and approved. Management also foresees consolidation in 
this industry over the medium-longer term among existing Licensed Producers and also from pharmaceutical and 
tobacco companies as they look to expand their product offerings.  

Recent Canadian Legal Developments 

On February 24, 2016, a Federal Court of Canada decision rendered in Allard v. Canada, 2016 FCC 26 (“Allard”) 
found that requiring individuals to obtain marijuana strictly from Licensed Producers violated an individual’s right to 
liberty and security under section 7 of the Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms. The Court reasoned that the 
restrictions enforced under the MMPR denied “reasonable access” for those individuals that required marijuana for 
medical purposes.  

Following the hearing of the constitutional challenge to the MMPR in Allard, the Court repealed the MMPR. The repeal 
of the MMPR was suspended for six months to allow the Government of Canada to amend the MMPR or issue new 
regulations. On August 24, 2016, the ACMPR came into force, replacing the MMPR as the regulations governing 
Canada’s Medical Marijuana program.  

The ACMPR remain largely consistent with the former MMPR, but has restored the ability of patients to grow their 
own cannabis at home, including the ability to designate a third-party grower through regulations akin to the former 
MMAR. Under the ACMPR, patients have three options for obtaining cannabis: (i) they can continue to access quality-
controlled cannabis by registering with a Licensed Producer; (ii) they can register with Health Canada to produce a 
limited amount for their own medical purposes; or (iii) they can designate someone else to produce it for them (starting 
materials, such as plants or seeds, are to be obtained from Licensed Producers only). 
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On October 19, 2015, the Liberal Party was elected and obtained a majority government in Canada. The Liberal Party 
made electoral commitments to legalize, regulate and tax recreational cannabis use in Canada and on April 13, 2017, 
the government of Canada introduced the Cannabis Act, C-45, in order to provide legal access to cannabis and to 
control and regulated its production, distribution and sale. It is not yet clear what, if any, negative impact the Cannabis 
Act might have on the Medical Marijuana industry as a whole. 

The ACMPR Licensing Process 

The market for cannabis (including Medical Marijuana) in Canada is regulated by the CDSA, the ACMPR, the Narcotic 
Control Regulations, and other applicable law. Health Canada is the primary regulator of the industry as a whole. The 
ACMPR aims to treat cannabis like any other narcotic used for medical purposes by creating conditions for a new 
commercial industry that is responsible for its production and distribution. 

The table below provides a general overview of the licensing process as described by Health Canada: 

  Summary 

Step 1  Preliminary Screening: When Health Canada receives an application, preliminary screening 
is conducted to ensure that the application is complete. Any incomplete applications will be 
returned to the applicant, and complete applications are assigned an application numbers. The 
assignment of an application number indicates that the application has completed the 
preliminary screening stage. 

Step 2  Enhanced Screening: After being assigned an application number, a more thorough review of 
the application is conducted to ensure that there is sufficient information to assess whether the 
requirement of the regulations are met. Specific elements given initial consideration include: 
the location of the proposed site; risks to public health, safety and security; the proposed 
security measures; and the credentials of the proposed quality assurance person to meet the 
good production requirements outlined in Subdivision D of the ACMPR. Health Canada will 
verify that the applicant has provided notice of the application to the senior official with the local 
government in the jurisdiction of the proposed site. 

The applicant is responsible for ensuring that they are in compliance with all applicable 
provincial, territorial, and municipal legislation, regulations, and bylaws, including zoning 
restrictions, fire and electrical safety requirements, and waste management requirements. 

At this step, Health Canada may request additional information that is relevant to the 
application. 

Step 3  Security Clearance: Once the screening of an application is complete, the security clearance 
forms for key personnel will be sent for processing. At this point, the Minister for Health will 
conduct criminal record checks and will review the relevant background of key personnel to 
assess whether the applicant poses a risk to the integrity of the control of the production and 
distribution of cannabis under the CDSA. The amount of time required to conduct mandatory 
security checks varies with each application. 

Step 4 

**Solace has 
completed 
this stage. 

 Review: Once all security clearances are obtained, an application will be thoroughly reviewed 
to validate the information provided. Given the extensive review process, applicants are 
generally required to communicate with Health Canada multiple times to clarify elements of 
their application. Health Canada may also request additional information.  

A detailed review and assessment of physical security plans will be conducted at this stage. 
Applicants must meet a minimum of a level 7 (as defined in the Directive on Physical Security 
Requirements for Controlled Substances - Licensed Dealers Security Requirements for the 
Storage Of Controlled Substances) to be considered for a licence. It is a requirement that 
physical security comply with the Directive. 

Once Health Canada is satisfied that an application is ready for a pre-licence inspection, they 
will contact the applicant and identify information that needs to be confirmed before a pre-
licence inspection can be scheduled. This includes, but may not be limited to, confirming how 
the applicant has indicated in their application that they would comply with Part 1, Division 1, 
Subdivision C (Security Measures) of the ACMPR. 
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Step 5 

**Solace is 
currently in 

this stage and 
in the process 
of building the 

Production 
Facility.  

 Pre-Licence Inspection: When Health Canada is satisfied of the prior steps and when the 
applicant has confirmed that the site has been fully built and security measures are in place, a 
Pre-Licence Inspection will be scheduled. The inspection may cover, but is not limited to: 
Security Measures, Good Production Practices, Packaging, Labelling and Shipping, 
Registration, and Record Keeping. The purpose of the inspection is to verify that the information 
submitted to Health Canada is accurate and to assess compliance with the applicable sections 
of the ACMPR prior to licence approval. Any identified deficiencies will be communicated to the 
applicant and must be addressed prior to a licence being issued.  

Step 6  Licensing: Next, the results of the Pre-Licence Inspection are reviewed along with all of the 
information submitted by the applicant and any other additional relevant information. If it is 
determined that the issuance of the licence is not likely to create risks to public health, safety 
or security, including the risk of cannabis being diverted to an illicit market or use, and there 
are no other grounds for refusing the application, a licence will be issued.  

Health Canada has introduced a graduated licensing process. Upon approval, applicants will 
first be issued a production licence. This will enable Health Canada inspectors to confirm that 
the first batch of marijuana produced meets the production standards and requirements outlined 
in the ACMPR.  

The Licensed Producer’s first crop of marijuana will be inspected to establish whether the 
marijuana meets the Licensed Producer's specified quality control standards and the Good 
Production Practices set out in Subdivision D of the ACMPR. Only once Health Canada is 
satisfied the Licensed Producer meets the requirements of the ACMPR will a licence be 
amended to allow sale to the public. 

To the knowledge of the Corporation, the Share Exchange has not resulted in any changes to Solace’s application 
to become a Licensed Producer under the ACMPR. TerrAscend Group anticipates the Pre-Licence Inspection stage 
to be completed on or about May 2017. 

ACMPR Licences 

The Cultivation Licence, if received, will allow TerrAscend Group, through Solace, to: 

 possess, produce, ship, deliver, transport and destroy dried cannabis 

 possess, produce, and destroy cannabis in its natural form, other than marijuana or cannabis oil, for the 
purpose of producing cannabis oil 

 possess and destroy cannabis, other than marijuana or cannabis oil, for the purpose of conducting in vitro 
testing that is necessary to determine the cannabinoid content of marijuana or cannabis oil 

The Sales Licence, if received, will allow TerrAscend Group, through Solace, to sell dried marijuana and cannabis oil 
to: 

 a client of Solace or an individual who is responsible for the client 

 a hospital employee, if the purpose is in connection with their employment 

 another Licensed Producer 

 a Licensed Dealer 

 the Minister 

 a person to whom an exemption relating to the substance has been granted under section 56 of the CDSA 

The Cultivation Licence will also enable application for an import permit to import dried marijuana cannabis as 
described by the ACMPR. The Cultivation Licence will also enable application for an export permit to export dried 
marijuana or cannabis other than marijuana or cannabis oil, for the purpose of conducting in vitro testing that is 
necessary to determine the cannabinoid content of marijuana or cannabis oil. Last, the Cultivation Licence will allow 
TerrAscend Group, through Solace, to ship dried marijuana or cannabis oil to a health care practitioner in the case 
referred to in subparagraph 130(1)(f)(iii) of the ACMPR. 
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The ACMPR also provide for licenses and import permits relating to fresh marijuana. The Licences, if received, will 
not include this permission. The importation of fresh marijuana requires a separate application and approval by Health 
Canada. 

The ACMPR provides that cannabis in its natural form, other than marijuana or cannabis oil, for the purpose of 
producing cannabis oil, may be provided, shipped, delivered or transported if it was obtained or produced for that 
purpose. 

Statutory Reporting Requirements 

With respect to the management and administration of the Solace, the ACMPR will require that: 

(a) In order to confirm any information submitted in support of an application for a licence or an 
amendment or renewal of a licence, an inspector may, at a time during normal business hours and 
with the reasonable assistance of Solace, inspect the site in respect of which the application was 
made. 

(b) If Solace experiences a theft of cannabis or an unusual waste or disappearance of cannabis that 
cannot be explained on the basis of normally accepted business activities, TerrAscend Group must 
report the occurrence to a member of a police force within 24 hours after becoming aware of it and 
provide a written report to the Minister within 10 days after becoming aware of the occurrence. 

(c) Solace apply for and obtain the Minister’s approval before making a change involving the 
replacement or the addition of (i) the senior person in charge, (ii) the responsible person in charge 
and, if applicable, the alternate responsible person in charge, (iii) an officer or director, or (iv) an 
individual authorized to place an order for cannabis on behalf of the licensed producer. 

(d) The Minister be notified not later than five days after the event, if a person ceases to be an officer or 
director of Solace. 

(e) The Minister be notified not later than the next business day if the responsible person in charge of 
Solace ceases to carry out their duties and there is no person designated as an alternate responsible 
person in charge. 

(f) The Minister be notified within five days after such change, of any change to the method used for 
keeping records or the telephone number, the facsimile number, or the email address for Solace’s 
site or each building within the site where the activities are conducted under the Cultivation Licence 
or the Sales Licence. 

With respect to future clients of Solace and proposed products sold by Solace if granted the Licences, the ACMPR 
requires that: 

(a) In respect of fresh or dried marijuana or cannabis oil sold, the Minister be provided with a case report 
for each serious adverse reaction to the substance within 15 days after the day on which the Licensed 
Producer becomes aware of the reaction. 

(b) Annually, prepare and maintain a summary report that contains a concise and critical analysis of all 
adverse reactions to fresh or dried marijuana or cannabis oil sold by Solace that have occurred during 
the previous 12 months (the serious adverse reaction reports and annual summary reports must be 
retained for a period of 25 years after the day on which they were made). 

 (c)  Solace report any new dried marijuana equivalency factor determined under section 79 of the 
ACMPR, and the method used to determine it, at least 10 days before it sells fresh cannabis, dried 
marijuana or cannabis oil, in respect of which the label referred to in section 84 or 88 of the ACMPR 
indicates the new factor, to a client. 

(d)  Solace, if provided with the given name, surname, date of birth and gender of an individual by a 
member of a Canadian police force who requests information in the course of an investigation under 
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the CDSA or the ACMPR, verify in a reasonable manner that the person requesting the information 
is a member of a Canadian police force. If the person is verified as a member of a Canadian police 
force, Solace must provide as soon as feasible, within 72 hours after receiving the request, the 
following information to that Canadian police force: 

(i) an indication of whether or not the individual is one of its clients or an individual who is 
responsible for one of its clients, 

(ii) in the case of a client, whether the client is registered with the Minister under Part 2 of the 
ACMPR and, if so, whether the client’s registration with the producer is for the purpose of 
obtaining an interim supply of fresh or dried marijuana or cannabis oil, marijuana plants or 
seeds, or both, and 

(iii) the daily quantity of dried marijuana that is specified in the medical document supporting the 
client’s registration or that is specified in that individual’s registration with the Minister made 
under Part 2 of the ACMPR. 

(e) Solace provide the Minister with any information that the Minister may require in respect of the 
records, documents and information referred to in Division 2 of the ACMPR, in the form and at the 
times that the Minister specifies. 

Reporting Requirements from the Licences 

In addition to the above general reporting requirements of the ACMPR, the Licences, if received, will require that 
Solace report the following additional information to the Office of Controlled Substances of Health Canada on a 
monthly basis, unless otherwise stated: 

(a) The total amount of dried marijuana (kg) tested, approved and ready for sale and produced by Solace 
during the reporting period. 

(b) The total amount of dried marijuana (kg) transferred to Solace from other Licensed Producers during 
the reporting period. 

(c) The total amount of dried marijuana (kg) sold during the reporting period to (i) registered clients, (ii) 
other Licensed Producers, (iii) Licensed Dealers, and (iv) other clients. 

(d) The total number of marijuana plants sold during the reporting period. 

(e) The number of clients at the end of the reporting period, including only those clients whose 
registrations were valid on the last day of the reporting period, and the total number new clients 
registered during the reporting period. 

(f) The number of clients who attempted to register with Solace during the reporting period, but could 
not be registered, regardless of the reason. 

(g) The number of clients who placed orders or tried to place orders with Solace that could not be filled 
during the reporting period, regardless of the reason. 

(h) The total amount of the following that Solace has in stock on the final day of the reporting period (i) 
number of harvested plants in the drying process, (ii) cannabis (kg) that has been dried but not tested, 
(iii) cannabis (kg) that has been dried and tested but not approved for sale, (iv) cannabis (kg) that 
has been dried, tested, approved and ready for sale, (v) cannabis (kg) held as samples, (vi) number 
of marijuana plants identified as ready to be destroyed, (vii) dried marijuana (kg) identified as ready 
to be destroyed, and (ix) number of live marijuana plants. 

(i) The total amount of dried marijuana (kg) that Solace imported and exported during the reporting 
period. 
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(j) The total amount of dried marijuana (g) lost and/or stolen during the reporting period. 

(k) The total amount of dried marijuana (g) destroyed during the reporting period, specifying the 
reason(s) and amount(s) of each (e.g., contaminated, past expiration date, recalled). 

(l) The total amount of waste marijuana (e.g., plants, leaves, twigs) destroyed during the reporting 
period (g). 

(m) The total number of shipments from Solace to the following in each province or territory during the 
reporting period (i) registered clients, (ii) other Licensed Producers, (iii) Licensed Dealers, and (iv) 
other clients. 

(n) The average and median daily amounts of dried marijuana (g) supported by healthcare practitioners 
to be used by Solace’s registered clients during the reporting period for all clients whose registrations 
were valid on the last day of the reporting period. 

(o) The average and median amounts of dried marijuana (g) shipped to Solace’s registered clients during 
the reporting period. 

(p) The 10 highest and ten lowest amounts of dried marijuana shipped to registered clients during the 
reporting period. 

(q) The total number of shipments of dried marijuana to registered clients categorized into 10-gram 
ranges increasing in size from 0 to 10 g to 141 to 150 g. 

(r) A list of all healthcare practitioners who provided a medical document for a registered client in the 
reporting period, the location of the healthcare practitioner and the number of medical documents 
the healthcare practitioner signed during the reporting period. 

(s) The amount of dried marijuana (kg) that Solace expects to produce during each month of the 
upcoming three months. 

(t) The amount of dried marijuana (kg) that Solace expects to have in inventory during each month of 
the upcoming three months. 

3.2 Proposed Acquisitions 

This section is not applicable to TerrAscend Group. 

3.3 Trends, Commitments, Events or Uncertainties and Forward Looking Information 

For additional information please see descriptions set out in Section 3.1, Business of TerrAscend Group, Section 4, 
Narrative Description of the Business, Section 6, Management’s Discussion and Analysis, and Section 17, Risk 
Factors. 

This Listing Statement contains forward-looking statements that relate to TerrAscend Group’s current expectations 
and views of future events.  The forward-looking statements are contained principally in Section 3, General 
Developments of the Business; Section 6, Management’s Discussion and Analysis; and Section 17, Risk Factors. 

In some cases, these forward-looking statements can be identified by words or phrases such as “may”, “might”, “will”, 
“expect”, “anticipate”, “estimate”, “intend”, “plan”, “indicate”, “seek”, “believe”, “predict” or “likely”, or the negative of 
these terms, or other similar expressions intended to identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements 
include estimates, plans, expectations, opinions, forecasts, projections, targets, guidance, or other statements that 
are not statements of fact. TerrAscend Group has based these forward-looking statements on its current expectations 
and projections about future events and financial trends that it believes might affect its financial condition, results of 
operations, business strategy and financial needs. These forward-looking statements include, among other things, 
statements relating to: 
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 expectations with respect to the granting of Solace’s successful application for the Licences 

 the suitability of the Production Facility 

 expectations with respect to the expansion of the Production Facility 

 TerrAscend Group’s expectations regarding its consolidated revenue, expenses and operations 

 TerrAscend Group’s anticipated cash needs, its needs for additional financing, changes to its dividend 
policies and the use of the net proceeds from the Private Placement 

 TerrAscend Group’s intention to develop its business and its operations 

 expectations with respect to future production costs and capacity 

 TerrAscend Group’s competitive position and the regulatory environment in which TerrAscend Group 
operates 

Certain of the forward-looking statements and forward-looking information and other information contained in this 
Listing Statement concerning our industry and the markets in which we operate, including our general expectations 
and market position, market opportunities and market share, is based on estimates prepared by TerrAscend Group 
using data from publicly available governmental sources as well as from market research and industry analysis and 
on assumptions based on data and knowledge of this industry which TerrAscend Group believes to be reasonable. 
While TerrAscend Group is not aware of any misstatement regarding any industry or government data presented 
herein, the Medical Marijuana industry involves risks and uncertainties that are subject to change based on various 
factors and TerrAscend Group has not independently verified such third party information. 

Forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and analyses made by TerrAscend Group in light of 
the experience and perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments and other 
factors it believes are appropriate, and are subject to risks and uncertainties. Although we believe that the 
assumptions underlying these statements are reasonable, they may prove to be incorrect, and we cannot assure that 
actual results will be consistent with these forward-looking statements. Given these risks, uncertainties and 
assumptions, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. Whether actual results, 
performance or achievements will conform to TerrAscend Group’s expectations and predictions is subject to a number 
of known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other factors, including those listed under Section 17, 
Risk Factors, which include:  

 Solace is not Licensed Producer under the ACMPR 

 meeting licensing requirements under the ACMPR 

 compliance with regulatory requirements relating to our business 

 changes in laws, regulations and guidelines relating to our business 

 limited operating history   

 history of net losses 

 negative operating cash flow 

 reliance on a single Production Facility 

 expansion of Production Facility subject to Health Canada regulatory approvals 

 inability to develop production capacity or, once developed, manage growth  

 reliance on Management  

 restrictions on sales activities 

 competition in our industry 

 inherent risks associated with the agricultural business 

 unfavorable publicity or consumer perception 
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 product liability claims and product recalls 

 vulnerability to rising energy costs  

 operating risk and insurance coverage  

 conflicts of interest among our officers and directors 

 compliance with environmental regulations relating to our business 

 managing damage to our reputation  

 involvement in litigation 

 volatility in the market price for the securities of the Corporation 

 no dividends for the foreseeable future 

 future sales of shares or other securities by existing shareholders causing the market price for the 
securities to fall 

 the issuance of shares or other securities in the future causing dilution 

If any of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or if assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements prove 
incorrect, actual results might vary materially from those anticipated in those forward-looking statements. 

Information contained in forward-looking statements in this Listing Statement is provided as of the date of this Listing 
Statement, and we disclaim any obligation to update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new 
information or future events or results, except to the extent required by applicable securities laws. Accordingly, 
potential investors should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements or the information contained in 
those statements. 

4. NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS 

4.1 General 

(1) Business of TerrAscend Group 

 (a) Business Objectives 

The primary business objectives for TerrAscend Group over the next 12 months are:  

1) Complete the initial phase one build-out of the Production Facility (anticipated in June 2017 for an estimated 
cost of $6,000,000 of which approximately $2,700,000 remains to be spent); 

2) Obtain a Cultivation Licence (anticipated in summer 2017, estimated cost included in build-out of Production 
Facility); 

3) Obtain a Sales Licence (anticipated in Q1 2018 for estimated cost of $500,000); and 

4) Develop a patient acquisition network (anticipated in Q3 2017 for estimated initial cost of $100,000). 

 (b) Significant Events or Milestones 

Significant events that need to occur for the business objectives to be accomplished: 

1) Successfully complete the Pre-licence Inspection to obtain the Cultivation Licence; and 

2) Successfully harvest required crops and complete all other requirements required by Health Canada to obtain 
the Sales Licence in order to be allowed to sell cannabis. 



TerrAscend Corp. CSE Form 2A – Listing Statement | P a g e 15 
April 26, 2017 

(c) Available Funds 

TerrAscend Group is not yet operational. As a result, as at December 31, 2016, TerrAscend Group had 
negative cash flows from operations. 

TerrAscend Group had approximately $5,000,000 in working capital as at January 31, 2017. 

(d) Principal Purposes of Funds 

With the completion of the Private Placement, TerrAscend Group has approximately $4,000,000 in working capital 
as at March 31, 2017 and intends to allocate the foregoing funds as follows; however, it reserves discretion to allocate 
to other strategic, operational or other demands as and when they arise: 

Use of Available Funds  Amount 

Phase One Construction 
of the Production Facility 

$2,700,000 

Sales Licence (including 
Production Facility 
operating costs and 
related salaries and 
consulting fees) 

$500,000 

Develop patient 
acquisition network 

$100,000 

Additional salaries and 
consulting fees 

$275,000 

General and 
administrative costs 

$70,000 

Legal and accounting 
fees 

$125,000 

Commission expense on 
Private Placement 

$108,000 

Total $3,878,000 

It is anticipated that the available funds will be sufficient to achieve TerrAscend Group's objectives over the next 12 
months. 

(2) Principal Products and Services  

Principal Products 

Management believes that, based on TerrAscend Group’s application process achievements to date, there is a strong 
likelihood that Solace will be issued the Licences by Health Canada. Upon receipt of the Cultivation Licence, 
TerrAscend Group anticipates cultivating and producing 4-8 select strains of medicinal marijuana and, upon receipt 
of a Sales Licence, TerrAscend Group will sell and distribute Medical Marijuana to registered patients and other 
parties permitted under the ACMPR. 

Medical Marijuana Industry 

Medical Marijuana (meaning the use of cannabis to treat disease or improve symptoms such as pain, muscle 
spasticity, nausea and other indications) can be administered using a variety of methods including, but not limited to, 
vaporizing or smoking dried buds, capsules, and oral/dermal sprays, and can also be ingested as oil or cannabis 
edibles. Unlike the pharmaceutical options, individual elements within Medical Marijuana have not been isolated, 
concentrated and synthetically manipulated to deliver a specific therapeutic effect. Instead Medical Marijuana 
addresses ailments holistically through the synergistic action of naturally occurring phytochemicals. Currently, the 
most common means of administering Medical Marijuana in Canada is by smoking dried buds. 
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Sativa and Indica are the two main types of cannabis, hybrid strains can be created when the genetics of each are 
crossed. Within these different types of cannabis there are many different varieties, within which there are many 
different cannabinoids, with the most common being delta-9-tetrahydrocannabinol (“THC”) the psychoactive 
ingredient and cannabidiol (“CBD”), which is responsible for many of the non-psychoactive effects of Medical 
Marijuana.  
 
In most parts of the world, recreational use of cannabis is illegal, however use of medicinal marijuana or derivatives 
thereof is legal to varying degrees in countries including Australia, Austria, Canada, Columbia, Czech Republic, 
Finland, Germany, Israel, Italy, the Netherlands, Portugal, Uruguay and the United States (use of which is prohibited 
under federal law, however 28 states and the District of Columbia no longer prosecute individuals for the possession 
or sale of Medical Marijuana, as long as the individuals are in compliance with the state’s Medical Marijuana sale 
regulations). 
 
The Production Facility 

On January 31, 2017, Solace acquired a 67,300 sqft Production Facility with a proposed level 10 security certification 
vault located in Mississauga, Ontario. It is intended that the Production Facility will be used initially to cultivate and 
produce Medical Marijuana, and will also facilitate TerrAscend Group’s centralized distribution of Medical Marijuana. 

When fully operational, the Production Facility will provide TerrAscend Group with approximately 50,500 sqft of 
cultivation and production and processing space, 9,500 sqft devoted to research and development, and 7,300 sqft of 
office space.  

The Production Facility is currently being built out in three separate accretive development phases. During phase 
one TerrAscend Group will operate out of two 2,000 sqft flower rooms consisting of five rolling tables each with a total 
per room production capacity of 61.0 kg – 96.0 kg per production cycle. Management anticipates that each flowering 
room will be on a 10-week production cycle enabling 5 production cycles per year. Management believes that based 
on these estimates, the total annual production capacity of the Production Facility under phase one to be between 
610 kg – 960 kg per year. Upon completion of phases two and three, the total annual production capacity of the 
Production Facility is anticipated to increase to between 2,135 kg – 3,360 kg per year in phase two, and between 
3,965 kg – 6,240 kg per year in phase three. 

As per Health Canada regulations, the Production Facility will contain one vault that is anticipated to be designated 
as security level 10, which allows storage of up to 15,000 kg or $150,000,000 worth of dried cannabis on site at any 
given time. The Production Facility’s vault will be equipped with security features reflective of its security level 
classification and to ensure compliance with Health Canada’s security requirements.  

Employees 

As of March 31, 2017, TerrAscend Group has 5 employees. The employees are distributed among the following 
functions: 

Functions Number of Employees 

Operations (Cultivation and Processing)  ..............................  1 

Marketing and Customer Service  .........................................  1 

Research and Development/Quality  .....................................  1 

Administration, IT and Communications  ...............................  2 

Our employees are highly-talented individuals who have educational achievements ranging from Ph.D, Masters, and 
undergraduate degrees in a wide range of disciplines, as well as staff who have been trained on the job to uphold 
the highest standards set as a company.  

(3) Production and Sales 

See (2) above.  
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(4) Competitive Conditions and Position 

In the near term, TerrAscend Group expects to compete with other Licensed Producers in Canada. TerrAscend Group 
believes that the existing regulatory framework and the capital costs associated with developing production facilities 
and maintaining operations will cause the number of Licensed Producers to remain relatively flat over the short term. 
Over the medium-longer term, Management anticipates that competition from new entrants will increase as existing 
applications in queue with Health Canada are processed and approved. Management also foresees consolidation in 
this industry over the medium-longer term among existing Licensed Producers and also from pharmaceutical and 
tobacco companies as they look to expand their product offerings. Please refer to Section 17, Risk Factors. 

(5) Lending 

This section is not applicable to TerrAscend Group. 

(6) Bankruptcy and Receivership 

Within the three most recently completed financial years and the current financial year, there has been no bankruptcy, 
or any receivership or similar proceedings against TerrAscend Group or any voluntary bankruptcy, receivership or 
similar proceedings by TerrAscend Group.  

(7) Material Restructuring 

This section is not applicable to TerrAscend Group. 

(8) Social or Environmental Policies 

TerrAscend Group has not implemented social or environmental policies that are fundamental to its operations.  

4.2 Asset-Backed Securities 

TerrAscend Group does not have asset-backed securities. 

5. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

5.1 Annual Information 

The following selected financial information has been derived from and is qualified in its entirety by Solace’s financial 
statements and notes thereto included in Schedule A to this Listing Statement, and should be read in conjunction 
with such financial statements and the related notes, along with the management’s discussion and analysis relating 
to such financial statements and also included in Schedule A. All financial statements of Solace have been prepared 
in accordance with IFRS. 

The following sets out selected summary financial information of Solace for the period from incorporation of Solace 
(February 18, 2014) to December 31, 2014, and for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2016:  

 Year ended 
December 31, 2016 

(audited) 

Year ended 
December 31, 2015  

(audited) 

Period ended 
December 31, 2014 

(audited) 

 $ $ $ 
    
Revenue Nil Nil Nil 
Total expenses 867,181 761,600 337,036 
Net income (loss) 867,181 761,600 337,036 
    
Current assets 3,466,420 397,462 382,322 
Total assets 3,867,191 539,142 382,322 
Current liabilities 1,786,168 1,107,767 719,355 
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 Year ended 
December 31, 2016 

(audited) 

Year ended 
December 31, 2015  

(audited) 

Period ended 
December 31, 2014 

(audited) 
Total liabilities 1,786,168 1,107,767 719,355 
Shareholders’ equity (deficiency) 2,081,023 (568,625) (337,033) 

 
The following table sets out the opening financial position of the Corporation: 

 As of March 7, 2017 

  
Assets   

Cash $1 
  
Shareholder’s Equity  

Share Capital $1 

5.2 Quarterly Information 

Please see Solace’s management’s discussion & analysis for the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 included 
in Schedule A to this Listing Statement along with the Corporation’s management’s discussion & analysis as at March 
7, 2017. 

5.3 Dividends 

We have not declared dividends on any of our shares in the past and we do not intend to pay any in the foreseeable 
future. Any future determination to pay dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend 
on the financial condition, business environment, operating results, capital requirements, any contractual restrictions 
on the payment of dividends and any other factors that the Board of Directors deems relevant. 

5.4 Foreign GAAP 

TerrAscend Group is not presenting consolidated financial information on the basis of foreign GAAP. 

6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Solace’s management discussion and analysis for the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 is included in 
Schedule A to this Listing Statement along with the Corporation’s management discussion and analysis as at March 
7, 2017. 

7. MARKET FOR SECURITIES 

There is no market through which the securities of the Corporation may be sold. 

8. CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION 

The following table sets forth the share capital of the Corporation as at the dates shown below. The table should be 
read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, Solace’s audited financial statements as at and for the 
years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 and the Corporation’s audited opening financial statements and the 
accompanying notes. 

Description 

 

Authorized 
Capital  

 Outstanding 
as at 

December 31, 
2016(1) 

 
Outstanding as at 

the date of this 
Listing Statement 

Common Shares  Unlimited  Nil  29,237,240 
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Warrants(2)  2,173,913  Nil  2,173,913 

Stock options  Up to 10%  Nil  Nil 

Notes:  

(1) The Corporation was incorporated on March 7, 2017 with one Common Share issued for $1. 

(2) Warrants issued by Solace are exercisable for Common Shares rather than Solace Shares. 

On January 31, 2017, Solace issued the Convertible Debenture in connection with the acquisition of the Production 
Facility. The Convertible Debenture is convertible into up to 18,950,261 Solace Shares. The Convertible Debenture 
is convertible at the option of the holder at $0.75 per Solace Share if the Solace is granted a Cultivation Licence on 
or before July 31, 2017, and $0.59 per share if Solace does not receive a Cultivation Licence or is granted a 
Cultivation Licence after July 31, 2017. Effective April 24, 2017, the Convertible Debenture was cancelled and 
reissued from the Corporation in the aggregate principal amount of $9,648,160 representing the initial principal 
amount of $9,400,000 plus interest that had accrued to such date. 

9. OPTIONS TO PURCHASE SECURITIES 

Warrants 

On January 31, 2017, Solace issued 2,173,913 warrants to purchase Solace Shares pursuant to the terms of a 
financial advisory consulting agreement. The warrants have an exercise price of $0.46 per share and expires on the 
later of (i) 24 months; and (ii) 18 months from the day Solace has securities listed on a recognized securities 
exchange. The terms of the warrants provide that that upon a “Capital Reorganization” (as defined therein), the holder 
is entitled to receive, in lieu of the number of Solace Shares to which the holder was otherwise entitled, a 
corresponding number of shares resulting from such Capital Organization. Each of Solace and the Corporation 
acknowledges and confirms that the Share Exchange is a Capital Reorganization whereby the holder may exercise 
the warrants for Common Shares. 

Options 

The Board of Directors has adopted a stock option plan (the “Stock Option Plan”) under which options may be 
granted to TerrAscend Group’s directors, officers, employees and consultants. 

As of the date of this Listing Statement, there are no options issued and outstanding under the Stock Option Plan. 

The Stock Option Plan provides that the aggregate number of Common Shares that may be issued upon the exercise 
of options cannot exceed 10% of the number of Common Shares issued and outstanding from time to time. As a 
result, any increase in the issued and outstanding Common Shares will result in an increase in the number of 
Common Shares available for issuance under the Plan. 

The number of Common Shares reserved for issue to any one person pursuant to the Stock Option Plan may not 
exceed 5% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares at the date of such grant, unless the Corporation has 
obtained approval by a majority of the votes cast by the shareholders eligible to vote at a shareholders’ meeting, 
excluding votes attaching to Common Shares beneficially owned by insiders and their associates. The number of 
Common Shares issuable to (i) any one consultant, or (ii) parties providing investor relation services, in any 12-month 
period, cannot exceed 2% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares. 

Options granted under the Stock Option Plan will have an exercise price of not less than the closing price of the 
Corporation’s shares on the CSE on the day prior to the date of the grant. 
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Convertible Debentures 

Solace initially issued the Convertible Debentures January 31, 2017. Effective April 24, 2017, the Convertible 
Debenture was cancelled and reissued from the Corporation in the aggregate principal amount of $9,648,160 
representing the initial principal amount of $9,400,000 plus interest that had accrued to such date. 

Date of Issuance Principal Amount 
Exercise Price per 

Share(1) Maturity Date(2) 

Number of Shares 
into which 
Convertible 

Debenture May be 
Converted(3) 

April 24, 2017 $9,648,160 $0.75 July 31, 2018 18,950,261 

Notes: 

(1) The Convertible Debenture is convertible into Common Shares at the option of the holder at $0.75 per share if Solace is granted a 
Cultivation Licence on or before July 31, 2017. The debenture is convertible into Solace Shares at $0.59 per share if Solace does not 
receive a Cultivation Licence or is granted a Cultivation Licence after July 31, 2017. 

(2) The holder of the Convertible Debenture shall have the right, following the Corporation becoming a reporting issuer and the listing of its 
shares on a recognized exchange, on the earlier of the business day immediately preceding: (i) the Maturity Date, and (ii) the business 
day immediately preceding the date fixed for the redemption of the Convertible Debenture, to convert all or any portion of the outstanding 
principal amount into Common Shares, at a price, with respect to the principal amount, equal to the conversion price. The Corporation 
will be entitled to require the debentureholder to convert all but not less than all of the principal amount outstanding under the Convertible 
Debenture at the conversion price if, for any 12 consecutive trading days the volume weighted average price (“VWAP”) of the shares 
equals or exceeds 150% of $0.75 and provided that such VWAP of the shares is not less than $1.15 per share. 

(3) The agreements governing the terms of the Convertible Debenture stipulate that any interest payments that are not paid when due will 
accrue and be added to the principal amount, which may be converted into shares under similar terms. 

10. DESCRIPTION OF THE SECURITIES 

10.1 General 

Common Shares 

The authorized capital of the Corporation consists of an unlimited number of Common Shares. As of the date of this 
Listing Statement, there are 29,237,240 Common Shares issued and outstanding. 

Warrants 

As of the date of this Listing Statement, there are no warrants of the Corporation issued and outstanding; however, 
Solace has outstanding 2,173,913 warrants which may be exercised for Common Shares. 

Options 

As of the date of this Listing Statement, the Corporation does not have any options issued or outstanding.  

Convertible Debentures 

As at the date of this Listing Statement, the Corporation has outstanding a Convertible Debenture which is convertible 
into up to 18,950,261 Common Shares. The Convertible Debenture is convertible at the option of the holder at $0.75 
per Solace Share if Solace is granted a Cultivation Licence on or before July 31, 2017, and $0.59 per share if Solace 
does not receive a Cultivation Licence or is granted a Cultivation Licence after July 31, 2017.  
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10.2 – 10.6  Debt Securities, Other Securities, Modification of Terms and Other Attributes 

None of the matters set out in sections 10.2 to 10.6 of CSE - Form 2A are applicable to TerrAscend Group. 

10.7 Prior Sales 

The following table summarizes details of the shares issued by the Corporation and Solace during the 12-month 
period prior to the date of this Listing Statement. 

 
Date of Issuance 

 
Description of Transaction 

 
Price per Security 

Number of 
Securities 

April 24, 2017(1) Convertible Debenture(1) $9,648,160 1 

April 13, 2017 Common Shares $0.60 2,250,000 

March 7, 2017 Common Shares $1 1 

January 31, 2017 Warrants(2) $0.46 (exercise price) 2,173,913 

January 11, 2017 Solace Shares $0.445 1,314,888 

December 30, 2016 Solace Shares $0.445 2,134,976 

December 16, 2016 Solace Shares $0.445 2,606,924 

December 9, 2016 Solace Shares $0.445 3,020,452 

December 9, 2016 Solace Shares $0.01 9,270,000 

Notes: 

(1) On January 31, 2017 Solace issued the Convertible Debenture which, effective April 24, 2017, was cancelled and reissued from the 
Corporation in the aggregate principal amount of $9,648,160 representing the initial principal amount of $9,400,000 plus interest that 
had accrued to such date.  The Convertible Debenture is convertible into up to 18,950,261 Common Shares at the option of the holder 
at $0.75 per Solace Share if Solace is granted a Cultivation Licence on or before July 31, 2017, and $0.59 per share if Solace does not 
receive a Cultivation Licence or is granted a Cultivation Licence after July 31, 2017.  

(2) On January 31, 2017, Solace issued 2,173,913 warrants to purchase Solace Shares pursuant to the terms of a financial advisory 
consulting agreement. The warrants have an exercise price of $0.46 per share and expires on the later of (i) 24 months; and (ii) 18 
months from the day Solace has securities listed on a recognized securities exchange. The terms of the warrants provide that that upon 
a “Capital Reorganization” (as defined therein), the holder is entitled to receive, in lieu of the number of Solace Shares to which the 
holder was otherwise entitled, a corresponding number of shares resulting from such Capital Organization. Each of Solace and the 
Corporation acknowledges and confirms that the Share Exchange is a Capital Reorganization whereby the holder may exercise the 
warrants for Common Shares. 

On January 30, 2017, Solace commenced a non-brokered private placement offering of up to 2,250,000 Solace 
Shares at $0.60 per share for aggregate gross proceeds of up to $1,350,000 (the “Private Placement”). Pursuant to 
the incorporation of the Corporation and, subsequently, the Share Exchange, on or around March 14, 2017, the 226 
subscribers in the Private Placement were sent a notice allowing them to amend their initial subscription for Solace 
Shares and instead purchase Common Shares or otherwise cancel their subscription and have their subscription 
funds returned. All subscribers amended their subscriptions and a total of 2,250,000 Common Shares have been 
purchased, representing maximum gross proceeds of $1,350,000. All trust release conditions to the Private 
Placement were satisfied April 12, 2017 and the Private Placement closed April 13, 2017. 

10.8 Stock Exchange Price 

This section is not applicable to TerrAscend Group. 

11. ESCROWED SECURITIES 

No securities of TerrAscend Group are subject to escrow. 
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12. PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS 

As of the date of this Listing Statement, to the knowledge of the directors and officers of TerrAscend Group, no person 
beneficially owns or exercises control or direction over Common Shares carrying more than 10% of the votes attached 
to Common Shares, except for the following:  

Name Type of Ownership 
Number and Common 

Shares Owned  
Percentage of 

Outstanding Shares(1)  

The Hanna Family Trust(2) Beneficial and of record 3,959,000 13.54% 

Star-Pharma Pan-America Inc.(3) Beneficial and of record 4,040,000 13.81% 

The Ela Family Trust(4) Beneficial and of record 5,005,000 17.12% 

Notes: 

(1) On a fully-diluted basis, the percentage of outstanding shares for The Hanna Family Trust, Star-Pharma Pan-America Inc., and the Ela 
Family Trust would be 7.86%, 8.02% and 9.94%, respectively. 

(2) Basem Hanna, Marina Hanna, and Paul-Mark Lakas are the trustees of The Hanna Family Trust. 

(3) Michael Nashat is a director of Star-Pharma Pan-America Inc. and, indirectly, beneficially owns 20% of its issued and outstanding share 
capital. 

(4) Vijay Sappani and Abirami Sappani are the trustees of The Ela Family Trust. 

13. DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS 

13.1 – 13.2 Directors and Executive Officers 

The following table sets out, for each of our directors and executive officers, the person’s name, age, province or 
state and country of residence, position with us, principal occupation and, if a director, the date on which the person 
became a director. Our directors are expected to hold office until our next annual general meeting of shareholders. 
Our directors are elected annually and, unless re-elected, retire from office at the end of the next annual general 
meeting of shareholders.  

Name and Province or State 
and Country of Residence Age 

Position with the 
Corporation 

Director 
Since Principal Occupation(4) 

Basem Hanna                      
Brampton, Ontario, Canada 

31 President, Chief 
Executive Officer and 
Director 

2017 President and Chief Executive 
Officer of the Corporation 

Jonathan Leong 

Toronto, Ontario, Canada 
31 Chief Financial Officer - Accountant 

Vijay Sappani                  
Brampton, Ontario, Canada  

41 Chief Strategy Officer  - Chief Strategy Officer of the 
Corporation 

Michael Nashat 
Brampton, Ontario, Canada 

33 Chief Operating Officer 
and Director(1)(2)(3) 

2017 Chief Operating Officer of the 
Corporation 

Gopal Bhatnagar 
Mississauga, Ontario, Canada 

55 Director(1) 2017 Cardiovascular surgeon at 
Trillium Health Care 

Richard Mavrinac 
Mississauga, Ontario, Canada 

64 Director(1) 2017 Consultant 
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Notes: 
(1) Audit committee member. 
(2) Audit committee chair.  
(3) Chairman of the board. 
(4) See additional information at Section 13.1 Biographies. 

Biographies 

The following are brief profiles of our executive officers and directors, including a description of each individual’s 
principal occupation within the past five years.  

Basem Hanna, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director     

Basem Hanna is the co-founder and CEO for TerrAscend Group. Mr. Hanna has expertise in finance, real estate and 
corporate operations and founded a real estate fund, Almega Capital Limited Partnership in 2011. Almega currently 
has a portfolio of assets across Ontario valued at over $30 million. 

Mr. Hanna holds a Bachelor of Arts and Honours in Business Administration from the Richard Ivey School of Business 
in London, Ontario. 

Jonathan Leong, Chief Financial Officer  

Jonathan Leong is a Chartered Public Accountant and Chartered Business Valuator with extensive experience 
working in a variety of audit, advisory, M&A and valuation engagements. Mr. Leong has been involved in a number 
of public and private market transactions, including business acquisitions and reverse takeovers, both domestically 
and internationally.  

Mr. Leong is an alumnus of Grant Thornton LLP and obtained his Master of Accounting from the University of 
Waterloo. 

Vijay Sappani, Chief Strategy Officer 

Vijay Sappani is the co-founder and Chief Strategy Officer (CSO) for TerrAscend Group. Prior to joining TerrAscend 
Group Mr. Sappani has held senior positions with Natco Pharma (Canada) Inc. and Biovail. Mr. Sappani has also 
served as Senior Special Assistant to the Minister of Health and Long Term Care in Ontario (2011-2012), sat on the 
board of the Ontario Ministry of Health and Long Term Care’s Pharmacy Council as well as the Katz Group advisory 
council for self-distribution. Additionally, Mr. Sappani has served as an advisor to organizations including, the 
Canadian Unity Council, Internationally Educated Professionals Conference, Indo-Canada Chamber of commerce, 
Metro Toronto Junior Chamber, Sri Lankans Without Borders, South Asian Professional Network for Health 
Awareness and Canadian Friends of Burma  

Mr. Sappani holds a Bachelor of Pharmacy from Madras, India and a post-graduate diploma in marketing from 
Humber Business School in Toronto.  

Michael Nashat, Chief Operating Officer and Director    

Dr. Michael Nashat is the co-founder and Chief Operating Officer of TerrAscend Group. He is the former Executive 
Director for OnPharm Independent Pharmacy Group and a former board member for the Ontario College of 
Pharmacists, Canadian Foundation for Pharmacy and the Canadian Association of Chain Drug Stores. He is also a 
former member of the Ontario Ministry of Health and Long Term Care’s Pharmacy Council. He currently serves as 
the co-chair of the Ontario Pharmacists Association’s Owners Advisory Council.  

Dr. Nashat has extensive financial experience: as the former Executive Director for OnPharm, which represents the 
commercial interest of over 340 pharmacies with annual sales of over $300 million, Dr. Nashat was responsible for 
setting up OnPharm’s financial systems and was responsible for financial reports, payment structure, and the internal 
audit process. He was also in charge of approving the financial statements and managing over 250 vendors and 12 
suppliers.  
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In addition, Dr. Nashat is a director or officer of more than 10 businesses in the retail or consulting space and is 
responsible for reviewing and approving the finances for these organizations. Also, as a former board member of the 
Canadian Association of Chain Drug Stores, Ontario College of Pharmacists and Canadian Foundation for Pharmacy, 
he reviewed and approved financial statements. 

Dr. Nashat received his Doctor of Pharmacy from the Albany College of Pharmacy and Health Science, and 
completed his Post-Doctoral Fellowship in Neuroscience Medical Strategy at Bristol Myers Squibb/Rutgers University 
in New Jersey, U.S.  

Gopal Bhatnagar, Director    

Dr. Gopal Bhatnagar is an Adjunct Assistant Professor of Surgery at the University of Toronto and Head of the 
Cardiovascular Surgery unit at the Trillium Health Centre and was the former Chief of Staff at the hospital from 2005 
to 2013. Dr. Bhatnagar is also the co-founder of one of the largest e-cigarette suppliers and retailers in Canada, 180 
Smoke. He previously served on the Canadian Forces as part of the medical corps and on the Canadian Armed 
Reserve Forces.  

Dr. Gopal has extensive financial experience: as the Chief of Staff of Trillium Health Centre from 2005 to 2013, he 
had shared responsibility for the administration of the budget, which started from $390 million in 2005 and reached 
$960 million by 2014. As part of his responsibilities, Dr. Bhatnagar reviewed pertinent financial statements. Prior to 
being the Chief of Staff, Dr. Gopal served as Chief of the Cardiac Program at Trillium Health Centre from 2000 to 
2005, where he had operational responsibility for an annual budget of $47 million and oversaw the opening of the 
new cardiac services wing, a $200 million capital build project. 

Dr. Bhatnagar received his M.D. from the University of Western Ontario. 

Richard Mavrinac, Director    

Richard served as the Chief Financial Officer of George Weston Limited and Executive Vice President of Loblaw 
Companies Limited from 2003 to 2007. Richard began his career with Loblaw Companies Limited in 1982 and held 
a variety of senior financial positions. In 1996, Richard assumed the role of Senior Vice President, Finance for George 
Weston Limited and Loblaw Companies Limited.  

Richard has a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Toronto and is a Chartered Professional 
Accountant.  

13.3 Beneficial Ownership of Shares Held by Directors and Executive Officers 

As a group, the directors and executive officers beneficially own, or control or direct, directly or indirectly, a total of 
15,024,000 Common Shares, representing 51.39% of the Common Shares outstanding. 

13.4 Board Committees 

The Corporation has one committee, the Audit Committee. The following are the members of the Audit Committee of 
the Corporation: 

Michael Nashat Not-Independent(1) Financially literate(1)  

Gopal Bhatnagar Independent(1) Financially literate(1) 

Richard Mavrinac Independent(1) Financially literate(1) 

Note: 
(1) As defined by NI 52-110 Audit Committees. 
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13.5 Principal Occupations of Directors and Executive Officers 

Please refer to Section 13.1 above.  

13.6 Cease Trade Orders or Bankruptcies 

None of our directors or executive officers has, within the 10 years prior to the date of this Listing Statement, been a 
director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer of any company (including us) that, while such person was 
acting in that capacity (or after such person ceased to act in that capacity but resulting from an event that occurred 
while that person was acting in such capacity) was the subject of a cease trade order, an order similar to a cease 
trade order, or an order that denied the relevant company access to any exemption under securities legislation, in 
each case for a period of more than 30 consecutive days. 

None of our directors, executive officers or shareholders holding a sufficient number of securities to affect materially 
the control of the Corporation, has, within the 10 years prior to the date of this Listing Statement, become bankrupt, 
made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any 
proceedings, arrangement or comprise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to 
hold its assets, been a director or executive officer of any company, that, while that person was acting in that capacity, 
or within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation 
relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or comprise with 
creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets. 

13.7 Penalties and Sanctions 

No director or executive officer or shareholder holding sufficient securities of the Corporation to affect materially the 
control of the Corporation has: 

(a) been subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to securities legislation or by a 
securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a securities regulatory 
authority; or 

(b) been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would be 
likely to be considered important to a reasonable investor making an investment decision. 

13.8 Penalties and Sanctions 

Please refer to Section 13.7 above.  

13.9 Personal Bankruptcies 

No director or officer or shareholder holding sufficient securities of the Corporation to affect materially the control of 
the Corporation, or a personal holding company of any such persons, has, within the 10 years before the date of this 
Listing Statement, become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or 
been subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver 
manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of the director or officer. 

13.10 Conflicts of Interest 

Members of the Management are, and may in future be, associated with other firms involved in a range of business 
activities. Consequently, there are potential inherent conflicts of interest in their acting as officers and directors of our 
company. Although the officers and directors are engaged in other business activities, TerrAscend Group anticipates 
they will devote an important amount of time to our affairs. 

TerrAscend Group’s officers and directors are now and may in the future become shareholders, officers or directors 
of other companies, which may be formed for the purpose of engaging in business activities similar to TerrAscend 
Group’s. Accordingly, additional direct conflicts of interest may arise in the future with respect to such individuals 
acting on behalf of us or other entities. Moreover, additional conflicts of interest may arise with respect to opportunities 
which come to the attention of such individuals in the performance of their duties or otherwise. Currently, TerrAscend 
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Group does not have a right of first refusal pertaining to opportunities that come to their attention and may relate to 
our business operations. 

TerrAscend Group’s officers and directors are, so long as they are our officers or directors, subject to the restriction 
that all opportunities contemplated by our plan of operation which come to their attention, either in the performance 
of their duties or in any other manner, will be considered opportunities of, and be made available to TerrAscend 
Group and the companies that they are affiliated with on an equal basis. A breach of this requirement will be a breach 
of the fiduciary duties of the officer or director. If TerrAscend Group or the companies with which the officers and 
directors are affiliated both desire to take advantage of an opportunity, then said officers and directors would abstain 
from negotiating and voting upon the opportunity. However, all directors may still individually take advantage of 
opportunities if TerrAscend Group should decline to do so. Except as set forth above, TerrAscend Group has not 
adopted any other conflict of interest policy with respect to such transactions. 

13.11 Management 

Please refer to Section 13.1 above.  

 

14. CAPITALIZATION 

14.1 Issued Capital 

The following table sets out the Corporation’s capitalization. 

As at April 21, 2017 

Number of 
Securities 

(non-
diluted) 

Number of 
Securities 

(fully-diluted) 

 
% of Issued  
(non-diluted) 

 
% of Issued  

(fully diluted) 

Public Float     

Total outstanding (A)  29,237,240 50,361,414 100.00% 100.00% 

 

Held by Related Persons or 
employees of TerrAscend Group 
or Related Person of TerrAscend 
Group, or by persons or 
companies who beneficially own or 
control, directly or indirectly, more 
than a 5% voting position in the 
Corporation (or who would 
beneficially own or control, directly 
or indirectly, more than a 5% 
voting position in the Corporation 
upon exercise or conversion of 
other securities held) (B) 

21,018,384 39,968,645 71.89% 79.36% 

 

Total Public Float (A-B) 

 

8,218,856 

 

8,218,856 

 

28.11% 

 

16.32% 
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As at April 21, 2017 

Number of 
Securities 

(non-
diluted) 

Number of 
Securities 

(fully-diluted) 

 
% of Issued  
(non-diluted) 

 
% of Issued  

(fully diluted) 

Freely-Tradeable Float 

Number of outstanding securities 
subject to resale restrictions, 
including restrictions imposed by 
pooling or other arrangements or 
in a shareholder agreement and 
securities held by control block 
holders (C)  

2,250,000 2,250,000 7.70% 4.47% 

Total Tradeable Float (A-C) 26,987,240 26,987,240 92.30% 53.59% 

Public Securityholders (Registered) 

For the purposes of this report, "public securityholders" are persons other than persons enumerated in section (B) of 
the previous chart. The table below is as current as of the date hereof, and only registered holders are listed. 

Class of Security   

Size of Holding  Number of holders Total number of 
securities 

1 - 99 securities Nil Nil 

100 – 499 securities Nil Nil 

500 – 999 securities Nil Nil 

1,000 – 1,999 securities Nil Nil 

2,000 – 2,999 securities Nil Nil 

3,000 – 3,999 securities 2 6,667 

4,000 – 4,999 securities Nil Nil 

5,000 or more  securities 150 8,212,189 

Total 152 8,218,856 

 

 

Public Securityholders (Beneficial)  

For the purposes of this report, "public securityholders (beneficial)" includes (i) beneficial holders holding securities 
in their own name as registered shareholders; and (ii) beneficial holders holding securities through an intermediary.  
The table below does not include “non-public securityholders” being those persons enumerated in section (B) of the 
issued capital chart and is current as of the date hereof. 

Class of Security   

Size of Holding  Number of holders Total number of 
securities 

1 - 99 securities Nil Nil 

100 – 499 securities Nil Nil 
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500 – 999 securities Nil Nil 

1,000 – 1,999 securities Nil Nil 

2,000 – 2,999 securities Nil Nil 

3,000 – 3,999 securities 2 6,667 

4,000 – 4,999 securities Nil Nil 

5,000 or more  securities 199 8,212,189 

Unable to confirm Nil Nil 

Total 201 8,218,856 

Non-Public Securityholders (Registered) 

For the purposes of this table, “non-public securityholders” are persons enumerated in Section (B) of the Issued 
Capital table above.   

Class of Security   

Size of Holding  Number of holders Total number of 
securities 

1 - 99 securities Nil Nil 

100 – 499 securities Nil Nil 

500 – 999 securities Nil Nil 

1,000 – 1,999 securities Nil Nil 

2,000 – 2,999 securities Nil Nil 

3,000 – 3,999 securities Nil Nil 

4,000 – 4,999 securities Nil Nil 

5,000 or more  securities 7 21,018,384 

Total 7 21,018,384 

14.2 Convertible/Exchangeable Securities 

Warrants 

On January 31, 2017, Solace issued 2,173,913 warrants to purchase Solace Shares pursuant to the terms of a 
financial advisory consulting agreement. The warrants have an exercise price of $0.46 per share and expires on the 
later of (i) 24 months; and (ii) 18 months from the day Solace has securities listed on a recognized securities 
exchange. The terms of the warrants provide that that upon a “Capital Reorganization” (as defined therein), the holder 
is entitled to receive, in lieu of the number of Solace Shares to which the holder was otherwise entitled, a 
corresponding number of shares resulting from such Capital Organization. Each of Solace and the Corporation 
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acknowledges and confirms that the Share Exchange is a Capital Reorganization whereby the holder may exercise 
the warrants for Common Shares. 

Convertible Debentures 

Solace initially issued the Convertible Debenture on January 31, 2017. Effective April 24, 2017, the Convertible 
Debenture was cancelled and reissued from the Corporation in the aggregate principal amount of $9,648,160 
representing the initial principal amount of $9,400,000 plus interest that had accrued to such date. 

Date of Issuance Principal Amount 
Exercise Price per 

Share(1) Maturity Date(2) 

Number of Shares 
into which 
Convertible 

Debenture May be 
Converted(3) 

April 24, 2017 $9,648,160 $0.75 July 31, 2018 18,950,261 

Notes: 

(1) The Convertible Debenture is convertible into Common Shares at the option of the holder at $0.75 per share if Solace is granted a 
Cultivation Licence on or before July 31, 2017. The debenture is convertible into Solace Shares at $0.59 per share if Solace does not 
receive a Cultivation Licence or is granted a Cultivation Licence after July 31, 2017. 

(2) The holder of the Convertible Debenture shall have the right, following the Corporation becoming a reporting issuer and the listing of its 
shares on a recognized exchange, on the earlier of the business day immediately preceding: (i) the Maturity Date, and (ii) the business 
day immediately preceding the date fixed for the redemption of the Convertible Debenture, to convert all or any portion of the outstanding 
principal amount into Common Shares, at a price, with respect to the principal amount, equal to the conversion price. The Corporation 
will be entitled to require the debentureholder to convert all but not less than all of the principal amount outstanding under the Convertible 
Debenture at the conversion price if, for any 12 consecutive trading days the volume weighted average price (“VWAP”) of the shares 
equals or exceeds 150% of $0.75 and provided that such VWAP of the shares is not less than $1.15 per share. 

(3) The agreements governing the terms of the Convertible Debenture stipulate that any interest payments that are not paid when due will 
accrue and be added to the principal amount, which may be converted into shares under similar terms. 

14.3 Other Listed Securities 

There are no other listed securities reserved for issuance that are not included in Section 14.2. 

15. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

15.1 Statement of Executive Compensation 

Executive Compensation 

Introduction 

The following discussion describes the significant elements of our executive compensation program, with particular 
emphasis on the process for determining compensation payable to the Corporation’s CEO and CFO and each of the 
Corporation’s other two most highly-compensated executive officers, or the two most highly compensated individuals 
acting in a similar capacity (collectively, the “Named Executive Officers” or “NEOs”). 

The Corporation (as well as Solace) has not paid any of its directors or executive officers. However, the Corporation 
is currently in discussions with its executive officers and anticipates entering into formal employment agreements 
with its executives in due course. The Corporation anticipates that the NEOs will be:  

 Basem Hanna, President & Chief Executive Officer 

 Jonathan Leong, Chief Financial Officer 

 Vijay Sappani, Chief Strategy Officer 

 Michael Nashat, Chief Operating Officer 
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Overview 

Our Board of Directors makes decisions regarding all forms of compensation, including salaries, bonuses and equity 
incentive compensation for our CEO, CFO and other executive officers, as well as approves corporate goals and 
objectives relevant to their compensation. The CEO, CFO and the COO, also administer employee incentive 
compensation, including the Stock Option Plan. 

Compensation Objectives 

Our compensation practices are designed to retain, motivate and reward our executive officers for their performance 
and contribution to our long-term success. The Board of Directors seeks to compensate executive officers by 
combining short-term and long-term cash and equity incentives. It also seeks to reward the achievement of corporate 
and individual performance objectives and to align executive officers’ incentives with the Corporation’s performance. 
The Corporation seeks to tie individual goals to the area of the senior executive officer’s primary responsibility. These 
goals may include the achievement of specific financial or business development goals. Corporation performance 
goals are based on our financial performance during the applicable financial year. 

In order to achieve our growth objectives, attracting and retaining the right team members is critical. A key part of this 
is a well-thought out compensation plan that attracts high performers and compensates them for continued 
achievements. Many of TerrAscend Group’s team members will participate in the Stock Option Plan, driving retention 
and ownership. Communicating clear and concrete criteria and process for merit-based increases and bonuses will 
also motivate the entire team to achieve individual and corporate goals. 

Elements of Compensation Program 

Our executive compensation consists primarily of three elements: base salary, annual bonuses and long-term equity 
incentives. 

Base Salary 

Base salaries for executive officers are established based on the scope of their responsibilities and their prior relevant 
experience, taking into account compensation paid by other companies in the industry for similar positions and the 
overall market demand for such executives at the time of hire. The Corporation does not actively benchmark its 
compensation to other companies, but has reviewed the public disclosure available for other comparable medical 
marijuana companies to assist in determining the competitiveness of base salary, bonuses, benefits and stock options 
paid to the executive officers of the Corporation. An executive officer’s base salary is determined by reviewing the 
executive officer’s other compensation to ensure that the executive officer’s total compensation is in line with the 
Corporation’s overall compensation philosophy. 

Base salaries are reviewed annually and increased for merit reasons, based on the executive’s success in meeting 
or exceeding individual objectives and/or for market competitiveness. Additionally, base salaries can be adjusted as 
warranted throughout the year to reflect promotions or other changes in the scope or breadth of an executive’s role 
or responsibilities, as well as for market competitiveness. 

Bonus Plans 

Our compensation program includes eligibility for annual incentive cash bonuses. The range of potential bonuses is 
currently determined at the Board’s sole discretion. NEO bonuses in the future may include corporate and financial 
performance targets, as well as personal performance objectives that are determined by the Board, which may 
include the implementation of new strategic initiatives, the development of innovations, teambuilding, the ability to 
manage the costs of the business and other factors. The mix between corporate and financial performance targets 
and personal performance objectives and the resulting bonus entitlements vary for each NEO.  

Stock Option Plan 

The Corporation currently has in place a rolling 10% Stock Option Plan with no options currently outstanding under 
the Stock Option Plan. Our Board of Directors will be responsible for administering the Stock Option Plan. 
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The purpose of the Stock Option Plan is to (i) provide directors, officers, consultants and key employees of 
TerrAscend Group with additional incentive; (ii) encourage stock ownership by such persons; (iii) encourage such 
persons to remain with TerrAscend Group; and (iv) attract new directors, employees and officers, among other 
purposes. As a rolling Stock Option Plan, the plan will require shareholder approval on an annual basis. 

The Stock Option Plan provides that the aggregate number of Common Shares that may be issued upon the exercise 
of options cannot exceed 10% of the number of Common Shares issued and outstanding from time to time. As a 
result, any increase in the issued and outstanding Common Shares will result in an increase in the number of 
Common Shares available for issuance under the Plan. 

The number of Common Shares reserved for issue to any one person pursuant to the Stock Option Plan may not 
exceed 5% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares at the date of such grant, unless the Corporation has 
obtained approval by a majority of the votes cast by the shareholders eligible to vote at a shareholders’ meeting, 
excluding votes attaching to Common Shares beneficially owned by insiders and their associates. The number of 
Common Shares issuable to (i) any one consultant, or (ii) parties providing investor relation services, in any 12-month 
period, cannot exceed 2% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares. 

Options granted under the Stock Option Plan will have an exercise price of not less than the closing price of the 
Corporation’s shares on the CSE on the day prior to the date of the grant. 

Compensation of Named Executive Officers 

None of the NEOs have received any form of compensation from the Corporation or Solace for the period from 
incorporation of Solace (February 18, 2014) to December 31, 2016. The Corporation is currently in discussions with 
its executive officers and anticipates entering into formal employment agreements with its executives in due course. 

Outstanding Option-Based Awards 

None of the NEOs have received any form of compensation from the Corporation or Solace for the period from 
incorporation of Solace (February 18, 2014) to December 31, 2016. The Corporation is currently in discussions with 
its executive officers and anticipates entering into formal employment agreements with its executives in due course. 
The Corporation anticipates that it will issue incentive options to certain individuals in the near term in connection 
with the execution of formal employment agreements. 

Employee Agreements and Termination and Change of Control Benefits 

None of the NEOs have entered into employment agreements with the Corporation. However, the Corporation is 
currently in discussions with its executive officers and anticipates entering into formal employment agreements with 
its executives in due course. The Corporation anticipates that the executive employment agreements will include 
customary provisions regarding base salary, eligibility for annual bonuses, enrolment of benefits, and change of 
control, among other things. 

Director Compensation 

Summary of Director Compensation 

TerrAscend Group currently does not have a standard arrangement pursuant to which directors are compensated. 
All directors are reimbursed for their respective out of pocket expenses in relation to their attendance at board of 
director meetings and committee meetings. TerrAscend Group has not provided compensation to members of the 
board of the directors at any time and does not intend to provide compensation to any director in the near term. 

Outstanding Option-Based Awards 

TerrAscend Group has not issued options to any of its directors or officers. TerrAscend Group anticipates that in 
future it will issue options to certain of its directors and officers. 
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Indemnification and Insurance 

TerrAscend Group maintains director and officer liability insurance (“D&O Insurance”). The D&O Insurance insures 
TerrAscend Group and its directors and officers against liability arising from wrongful acts of TerrAscend Group’s 
directors and officers in their capacity as directors and officers of TerrAscend Group, subject to limitations, and has 
an aggregate policy limit of $5,000,000. In addition, TerrAscend Group has entered into indemnification agreements 
with each of its officers and directors. The indemnification agreements require that TerrAscend Group indemnify and 
hold the indemnitees harmless to the greatest extent permitted by law for liabilities arising out of the indemnitees’ 
service to TerrAscend Group as directors and officers, provided that the indemnitees acted honestly and in good faith 
and in a manner the indemnitees reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to TerrAscend Group’s best interests 
and, with respect to criminal and administrative actions or proceedings that are enforced by monetary penalty, the 
indemnitees had no reasonable grounds to believe that his or her conduct was unlawful. The indemnification 
agreements also provide for the advancement of defence expenses to the indemnitees by TerrAscend Group.  

16. INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 

16.1 Aggregate Indebtedness 

None of TerrAscend Group’s directors or officers or any of their respective associates is indebted to TerrAscend 
Group or has been subject of a guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or similar arrangement or understanding 
provided by TerrAscend Group. 

16.2 Indebtedness under Securities Purchase and Other Programs 

This section is not applicable to TerrAscend Group. 

17. RISK FACTORS 

17.1 Risk Factors Relating to TerrAscend Group 

The following information is a summary only of certain risk factors and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, and 
must be read in conjunction with, the detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Listing Statement. These risks 
and uncertainties are not the only ones TerrAscend Group is facing. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently 
known to TerrAscend Group, or that it currently deems immaterial, may also impair its operations. If any such risks 
actually occur, the business, financial condition, liquidity and results of TerrAscend Group’s operations could be 
materially adversely affected. The risk factors described below should be carefully considered by readers, including 
investors considering a purchase of securities of the Corporation, along with all other information set forth in this 
Listing Statement. 

An investment in securities of the Corporation should only be made by persons who can afford a significant or total 
loss of their investment.  

Solace is Not a Licensed Producer under the ACMPR 

Solace has applied to Health Canada to become a Licensed Producer under the ACMPR that would enable it to 
cultivate and sell Medical Marijuana to patients across Canada. Solace has not yet received the Licences and there 
is no guarantee that it will become a Licensed Producer. Health Canada has received many applications and only a 
small fraction have been approved to date. Furthermore, the timing and success of Solace at the various steps in the 
licensing process is beyond its control and the sole discretion thereof lies with Health Canada. Solace’s ability to 
grow, store and sell Medical Marijuana in Canada is dependent on receiving a Cultivation Licence and a Sales Licence 
from Health Canada and there can be no assurance that Solace will obtain such Licences.  

Even if Solace is successful in obtaining the Cultivation Licence and the Sales Licence, such Licences will be subject 
to ongoing compliance and reporting requirements. Failure to comply with the requirements of the Licences or any 
failure to maintain the Licences would have a material adverse impact on the business, financial condition and 
operating results of Solace. Although the Corporation believes that Solace will meet the requirements of the ACMPR, 
there can be no guarantee that Health Canada will grant these Licences. Should Health Canada not grant the 
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Licences, the business, financial condition and operating results of TerrAscend Group would be materially adversely 
affected. To the extent such Licences are not obtained, the Corporation and Solace may be curtailed or prohibited 
from its proposed production of Medical Marijuana or from proceeding with the development of its operations as 
currently proposed. 

Regulatory Risks 

TerrAscend Group operates in a new industry which is highly regulated and is in a market that is very competitive 
and evolving rapidly. Solace's ability to grow, store and sell Medical Marijuana in Canada is dependent on the 
Licences from Health Canada and the need to maintain the Licences in good standing. Failure to comply with the 
requirements of the Licences or any failure to maintain these Licences would have a material adverse impact on the 
business, financial condition and operating results of TerrAscend Group.  

TerrAscend Group will incur ongoing costs and obligations related to regulatory compliance. Failure to comply with 
regulations may result in additional costs for corrective measures, penalties or in restrictions on TerrAscend Group’s 
operations. In addition, changes in regulations, more vigorous enforcement thereof or other unanticipated events 
could require extensive changes to TerrAscend Group’s operations, increased compliance costs or give rise to 
material liabilities, which could have a material adverse effect on the business, financial condition and operating 
results of TerrAscend Group. 

The industry is subject to extensive controls and regulations, which may significantly affect the financial condition of 
market participants. The marketability of any product may be affected by numerous factors that are beyond 
TerrAscend Group’s control and which cannot be predicted, such as changes to government regulations, including 
those relating to taxes and other government levies which may be imposed. Changes in government levies, including 
taxes, could reduce TerrAscend Group’s earnings and could make future capital investments or TerrAscend Group’s 
operations uneconomical. The industry is also subject to numerous legal challenges, which may significantly affect 
the financial condition of market participants and which cannot be reliably predicted. 

Change in Laws, Regulations and Guidelines 

TerrAscend Group’s operations are subject to various laws, regulations and guidelines relating to the manufacture, 
management, packaging/labelling, advertising, sale, transportation, storage and disposal of Medical Marijuana but 
also including laws and regulations relating to drug, controlled substances, health and safety, the conduct of 
operations and the protection of the environment. While to the knowledge of Management, other than routine 
corrections that may be required by Health Canada from time to time, TerrAscend Group is currently in compliance 
with all such laws. Changes to such laws, regulations and guidelines due to matters beyond the control of TerrAscend 
Group may cause adverse effects to its operations. 

TerrAscend Group endeavours to comply with all relevant laws, regulations and guidelines. To TerrAscend Group’s 
knowledge, it is in compliance or in the process of being assessed for compliance with all such laws, regulations and 
guidelines as described elsewhere in this Listing Statement. 

On February 24, 2016, the Federal Court of Canada issued the Allard Decision, declaring that the MMPR, as it was 
drafted, is unconstitutional in violation of the plaintiffs’ rights under section 7 of the Charter of Rights and Freedoms. 
The declaration of invalidity was suspended for six months to allow the Government of Canada to amend or issue 
new regulations. On March 21, 2014 the Federal Court of Canada issued an order affecting the repeal of the MMAR 
and the application of certain portions of the MMPR which are inconsistent with the MMAR in response to a motion 
brought by the plaintiffs in the Allard Decision. On August 24, 2016, the ACMPR came into force, replacing the MMPR 
as the regulations governing Canada’s Medical Marijuana regime which permits patients to produce a limited amount 
of cannabis for their own medical purposes or to designate a person to produce a limited amount of cannabis. This 
ACMPR could significantly reduce the addressable market for TerrAscend Group’s proposed products and could 
materially and adversely affect the business, financial condition and results of operations of TerrAscend Group. 

On October 19, 2015, the Liberal Party was elected and obtained a majority government in Canada. The Liberal Party 
made electoral commitments to legalize, regulate and tax recreational cannabis use in Canada and on April 13, 2017, 
the government of Canada introduced the Cannabis Act, C-45, in order to provide legal access to cannabis and to 
control and regulated its production, distribution and sale. It is not yet clear what, if any, negative impact the Cannabis 
Act might have on the Medical Marijuana industry as a whole.  
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Limited Operating History 

Solace entered the Medical Marijuana industry in 2014. TerrAscend Group is therefore subject to many of the risks 
common to early-stage enterprises, including limitations with respect to personnel, financial, and other resources and 
lack of revenues. There is no assurance that TerrAscend Group will be successful in achieving a return on 
shareholders' investment and the likelihood of success must be considered in light of the early stage of operations. 

History of Net Losses 

Solace has incurred operating losses since incorporation. TerrAscend Group may not be able to achieve or maintain 
profitability and may continue to incur significant losses into the future. In addition, TerrAscend Group expects to 
continue to increase operating expenses as it implements initiatives to grow its business. If TerrAscend Group’s 
revenues do not increase to offset these expected increases in costs and operating expenses, TerrAscend Group 
will not be profitable. 

Negative Operating Cash Flow 

Solace did not generate operating revenue and historically has had negative cash flow from operating activities. It is 
anticipated that TerrAscend Group will continue to have negative cash flows in the foreseeable future. Continued 
losses may have the following consequences: 
 

 increasing TerrAscend Group’s vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions; 

 Limiting TerrAscend Group’s ability to obtain additional financing to fund future working capital, capital 
expenditures, operating costs and other general corporate requirements; and 

 limited TerrAscend Group’s flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in its business and the industry. 

Reliance on a Single Facility 

TerrAscend Group’s activities and resources are focused in its facility in Mississauga, Ontario and are expected to 
continue to be focused on this Production Facility for the foreseeable future. Adverse changes or developments 
affecting the existing Production Facility could have a material and adverse effect on TerrAscend Group’s ability, if 
and when it acquires the Licences from Health Canada, to produce Medical Marijuana, its business, financial 
condition and prospects.  

Expansion of Production Facility 

Expansion of the Production Facility is subject to Health Canada regulatory approvals. While Management does not 
anticipate significant issues receiving any necessary approvals in the future, the delay or denial of such approvals 
may have a material adverse impact on the business and may result in TerrAscend Group not meeting anticipated 
or future demand when it arises. 

Reliance on Management 

The success of TerrAscend Group is dependent upon the ability, expertise, judgment, discretion and good faith of 
our senior management, including Basem Hanna, President & Chief Executive Officer, Vijay Sappani, Chief Strategy 
Officer, and Michael Nashat, Chief Operating Officer. Our future success depends on our continuing ability to attract, 
develop, motivate and retain highly qualified and skilled employees. Qualified individuals are in high demand, and we 
may incur significant costs to attract and retain them. In addition, the loss of any of our senior management or key 
employees could materially adversely affect our ability to execute our business plan and strategy, and we may not 
be able to find adequate replacements on a timely basis, or at all. 

Restrictions on Sales Activities 

The Medical Marijuana industry is in its early development stage and restrictions on sales and marketing activities 
imposed by Health Canada, various medical associations, other governmental or quasi-governmental bodies or 
voluntary industry associations may adversely affect TerrAscend Group's ability to conduct sales and marketing 
activities and could have a material adverse effect on TerrAscend Group's business, operating results or financial 
condition. 
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Additional Financing 

There is no guarantee that TerrAscend Group will be able to execute on its strategy. The continued development of 
TerrAscend Group may require additional financing. The failure to raise such capital could result in the delay or 
indefinite postponement of current business strategy or TerrAscend Group ceasing to carry on business. There can 
be no assurance that additional capital or other types of financing will be available if needed or that, if available, the 
terms of such financing will be favourable to TerrAscend Group. In addition, from time to time, TerrAscend Group 
may enter into transactions to acquire assets or the shares of other Companies. These transactions may be financed 
wholly or partially with debt, which may temporarily increase TerrAscend Group’s debt levels above industry 
standards. Any debt financing secured in the future could involve restrictive covenants relating to capital raising 
activities and other financial and operational matters, which may make it more difficult for TerrAscend Group to obtain 
additional capital and to pursue business opportunities, including potential acquisitions. Debt financings may contain 
provisions, which, if breached, may entitle lenders to accelerate repayment of loans and there is no assurance that 
TerrAscend Group would be able to repay such loans in such an event or prevent the enforcement of security granted 
pursuant to such debt financing. TerrAscend Group may require additional financing to fund its operations to the point 
where it is generating positive cash flows. Negative cash flow may restrict TerrAscend Group’s ability to pursue its 
business objectives. 

Competition 

TerrAscend Group will face intense competition from other companies, some of which can be expected to have more 
financial resources and manufacturing and marketing experience than TerrAscend Group. Increased competition by 
larger and better financed competitors could materially and adversely affect the business, financial condition and 
results of operations of TerrAscend Group. 

To date, the Canadian government has only issued a limited number of licenses under the ACMPR to produce and 
sell Medical Marijuana. The number of licenses granted could have an impact on the business, financial condition 
and operating results of TerrAscend Group. Because of early stage of the industry in which TerrAscend Group 
operates, TerrAscend Group expects to face additional competition from new entrants. According to Health Canada, 
there are currently 43 Licensed Producers as the date of this Listing Statement. If the number of users of Medical 
Marijuana in Canada increases, the demand for products will increase and TerrAscend Group expects that 
competition will become more intense, as current and future competitors begin to offer an increasing number of 
diversified products. To remain competitive, TerrAscend Group will require a continued high level of investment in 
research and development, marketing, sales and client support. TerrAscend Group may not have sufficient resources 
to maintain research and development, marketing, sales and client support efforts on a competitive basis which could 
materially and adversely affect the business, financial condition and operating results of TerrAscend Group. 

Client Acquisition and Retention 

TerrAscend Group’s success will depend on its ability to attract and retain patients. There are many factors which 
could impact TerrAscend Group’s ability to attract and retain patients, including but not limited to TerrAscend Group’s 
ability to continually produce desirable and effective product, the successful implementation of TerrAscend Group’s 
patient-acquisition plan and the continued growth in the aggregate number of patients selecting Medical Marijuana 
as a treatment option and other companies producing and supplying similar products. TerrAscend Group’s failure to 
acquire and retain patients would have a material adverse effect on the business, financial condition and operating 
results of TerrAscend Group. 

Transportation Risks 

Due to the perishable nature of TerrAscend Group’s proposed products, TerrAscend Group will depend on fast and 
efficient third party transportation services to distribute its product. Any prolonged disruption of third party 
transportation services could have an adverse effect on the financial condition and results of operations of TerrAscend 
Group. Rising costs associated with the third party transportation services which will be used by TerrAscend Group 
to ship its proposed products may also adversely impact the business of TerrAscend Group and its ability to operate 
profitably. 
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Risks Inherent in an Agricultural Business 

TerrAscend Group’s business will involve the growing of Medical Marijuana, an agricultural product. As such, the 
business is subject to the risks inherent in the agricultural business, such as insects, plant diseases and similar 
agricultural risks. Although TerrAscend Group proposes to grow its proposed products indoors under climate 
controlled conditions, there can be no assurance that natural elements will not have a material adverse effect on the 
volume, quality and consistency of its products. 

Unfavorable Publicity or Consumer Perception 

Management believes the Medical Marijuana industry is highly dependent upon consumer perception regarding the 
safety, efficacy and quality of the Medical Marijuana produced. Consumer perception of TerrAscend Group's 
proposed products may be significantly influenced by scientific research or findings, regulatory investigations, 
litigation, media attention and other publicity regarding the consumption of Medical Marijuana products. There can 
be no assurance that future scientific research, findings, regulatory proceedings, litigation, media attention or other 
research findings or publicity will be favourable to the Medical Marijuana market or any particular product, or 
consistent with earlier publicity. Future research reports, findings, regulatory proceedings, litigation, media attention 
or other publicity that are perceived as less favourable than, or that question, earlier research reports, findings or 
publicity could have a material adverse effect on the demand for TerrAscend Group's proposed products and the 
business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows of TerrAscend Group. TerrAscend Group's 
dependence upon consumer perceptions means that adverse scientific research reports, findings, regulatory 
proceedings, litigation, media attention or other publicity, whether or not accurate or with merit, could have a material 
adverse effect on TerrAscend Group, the demand for TerrAscend Group's proposed products, and the business, 
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows of TerrAscend Group. Further, adverse publicity reports or 
other media attention regarding the safety, efficacy and quality of Medical Marijuana in general, or TerrAscend 
Group's proposed products specifically, or associating the consumption of Medical Marijuana with illness or other 
negative effects or events, could have such a material adverse effect. Such adverse publicity reports or other media 
attention could arise even if the adverse effects associated with such products resulted from consumers' failure to 
consume such products appropriately or as directed. 

Product Liability 

If licensed as a distributor of products designed to be ingested or inhaled, TerrAscend Group faces an inherent risk 
of exposure to product liability claims, regulatory action and litigation if its proposed products are alleged to have 
caused significant loss or injury. In addition, the manufacture and sale of cannabis products involve the risk of injury 
to consumers due to tampering by unauthorized third parties or product contamination. Previously unknown adverse 
reactions resulting from human consumption of cannabis products alone or in combination with other medications or 
substances could occur. TerrAscend Group may be subject to various product liability claims, including, among 
others, that the proposed products produced by TerrAscend Group caused injury or illness, include inadequate 
instructions for use or include inadequate warnings concerning possible side effects or interactions with other 
substances. A product liability claim or regulatory action against TerrAscend Group could result in increased costs, 
could adversely affect TerrAscend Group’s reputation with consumers generally, and could have a material adverse 
effect on the business, financial condition and operating results of TerrAscend Group. There can be no assurances 
that TerrAscend Group will be able to obtain or maintain product liability insurance on acceptable terms or with 
adequate coverage against potential liabilities. Such insurance is expensive and may not be available in the future 
on acceptable terms, or at all. The inability to obtain sufficient insurance coverage on reasonable terms or to otherwise 
protect against potential product liability claims could prevent or inhibit the commercialization of proposed products. 

Product Recalls 

Manufacturers and distributors of products are sometimes subject to the recall or return of their products for a variety 
of reasons, including product defects, such as contamination, unintended harmful side effects or interactions with 
other substances, packaging safety and inadequate or inaccurate labeling disclosure. If any of TerrAscend Group’s 
proposed products are recalled due to an alleged product defect or for any other reason, TerrAscend Group could be 
required to incur the unexpected expense of the recall and any legal proceedings that might arise in connection with 
the recall. TerrAscend Group may lose a significant amount of sales and may not be able to replace those sales at 
an acceptable margin or at all. In addition, a product recall may require significant Management attention. Although 
TerrAscend Group intends to have detailed procedures in place for testing proposed finished products, there can be 
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no assurance that any quality, potency or contamination problems will be detected in time to avoid unforeseen product 
recalls, regulatory action or lawsuits. Additionally, if one of TerrAscend Group’s proposed products were subject to 
recall, the image of that product and TerrAscend Group could be harmed. A recall for any of the foregoing reasons 
could lead to decreased demand for products produced by TerrAscend Group and could have a material adverse 
effect on the results of operations and financial condition of TerrAscend Group. Additionally, product recalls may lead 
to increased scrutiny of the operations of TerrAscend Group by Health Canada or other regulatory agencies, requiring 
further Management attention and potential legal fees and other expenses. 

Vulnerability to Rising Energy Costs 

TerrAscend Group’s proposed Medical Marijuana growing operations will consume considerable energy, making 
TerrAscend Group vulnerable to rising energy costs. Rising or volatile energy costs may adversely impact the 
business of TerrAscend Group and its ability to operate profitably. 

Operating Risk and Insurance Coverage 

TerrAscend Group has insurance to protect its assets, operations and employees. While TerrAscend Group believes 
its insurance coverage addresses all material risks to which it is exposed and is adequate and customary in its current 
state of operations, such insurance is subject to coverage limits and exclusions and may not be available for the risks 
and hazards to which TerrAscend Group is exposed. In addition, no assurance can be given that such insurance will 
be adequate to cover TerrAscend Group’s liabilities or will be generally available in the future or, if available, that 
premiums will be commercially justifiable. If TerrAscend Group were to incur substantial liability and such damages 
were not covered by insurance or were in excess of policy limits, or if TerrAscend Group were to incur such liability 
at a time when it is not able to obtain liability insurance, its business, results of operations and financial condition 
could be materially adversely affected. 

Management of Growth 

TerrAscend Group may be subject to growth-related risks, including capacity constraints and pressure on its internal 
systems and controls. The ability of TerrAscend Group to manage growth effectively will require it to continue to 
implement and improve its operational and financial systems and to expand, train and manage its employee base. 
The inability of TerrAscend Group to deal with this growth may have a material adverse effect on TerrAscend Group’s 
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. 

Conflicts of Interest 

TerrAscend Group may be subject to various potential conflicts of interest because of the fact that some of its officers 
and directors may be engaged in a range of business activities. In addition, TerrAscend Group’s executive officers 
and directors may devote time to their outside business interests, so long as such activities do not materially or 
adversely interfere with their duties to TerrAscend Group. In some cases, TerrAscend Group’s executive officers and 
directors may have fiduciary obligations associated with these business interests that interfere with their ability to 
devote time to TerrAscend Group’s business and affairs and that could adversely affect TerrAscend Group’s 
operations. These business interests could require significant time and attention of TerrAscend Group’s executive 
officers and directors. 

In addition, TerrAscend Group may also become involved in other transactions which conflict with the interests of its 
directors and the officers who may from time to time deal with persons, firms, institutions or Companies with which 
TerrAscend Group may be dealing, or which may be seeking investments similar to those desired by it. The interests 
of these persons could conflict with those of TerrAscend Group. In addition, from time to time, these persons may be 
competing with TerrAscend Group for available investment opportunities. Conflicts of interest, if any, will be subject 
to the procedures and remedies provided under applicable laws. In particular, in the event that such a conflict of 
interest arises at a meeting of TerrAscend Group’s directors, a director who has such a conflict will abstain from 
voting for or against the approval of such participation or such terms. In accordance with applicable laws, the directors 
of TerrAscend Group are required to act honestly, in good faith and in the best interests of TerrAscend Group. 
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Environmental Regulations and Risks 

TerrAscend Group’s operations are subject to environmental regulation. These regulations mandate, among other 
things, the maintenance of air and water quality standards and land reclamation. They also set forth limitations on 
the generation, transportation, storage and disposal of solid and hazardous waste. Environmental legislation is 
evolving in a manner which will require stricter standards and enforcement, increased fines and penalties for non-
compliance, more stringent environmental assessments of proposed projects and a heightened degree of 
responsibility for companies and their officers, directors and employees. There is no assurance that future changes 
in environmental regulation, if any, will not adversely affect TerrAscend Group’s operations. 

Government approvals and permits are currently, and may in the future be required in connection with TerrAscend 
Group’s operations. To the extent such approvals are required and not obtained, TerrAscend Group may be curtailed 
or prohibited from its proposed production of Medical Marijuana or from proceeding with the development of its 
operations as currently proposed. 

Failure to comply with applicable laws, regulations and permitting requirements may result in enforcement actions 
thereunder, including orders issued by regulatory or judicial authorities causing operations to cease or be curtailed, 
and may include corrective measures requiring capital expenditures, installation of additional equipment, or remedial 
actions. TerrAscend Group may be required to compensate those suffering loss or damage by reason of its operations 
and may have civil or criminal fines or penalties imposed for violations of applicable laws or regulations. 

Reputation Loss 

Damage to TerrAscend Group’s reputation can be the result of the actual or perceived occurrence of any number of 
events, and could include any negative publicity, whether true or not. The increased usage of social media and other 
web-based tools used to generate, publish and discuss user-generated content and to connect with other users has 
made it increasingly easier for individuals and groups to communicate and share opinions and views in regards to 
TerrAscend Group and its activities, whether true or not. Although TerrAscend Group believes that it operates in a 
manner that is respectful to all stakeholders and that it takes care in protecting its image and reputation, TerrAscend 
Group does not ultimately have direct control over how it is perceived by others. Reputation loss may result in 
decreased investor confidence, increased challenges in developing and maintaining community relations and an 
impediment to TerrAscend Group’s overall ability to advance its projects, thereby having a material adverse impact 
on financial performance, financial condition, cash flows and growth prospects. 

Litigation 

TerrAscend Group may become party to litigation from time to time in the ordinary course of business which could 
adversely affect its business. Should any litigation in which TerrAscend Group becomes involved be determined 
against TerrAscend Group such a decision could adversely affect TerrAscend Group's ability to continue operating 
and the market price for the Common Shares and could use significant resources. Even if TerrAscend Group is 
involved in litigation and wins, litigation can redirect significant resources. Litigation may also create a negative 
perception of TerrAscend Group's brand. 

17.2 Risk Factors Resulting in Securityholder Liability 

There are no risks that securityholders of the Corporation may become liable to make an additional contribution 
beyond the price of the security. 

17.3 Other Material Risk Factors  

There are no additional risk factors material to TerrAscend Group that a reasonable investor would consider relevant 
to an investment in the securities being listed and that are not otherwise described under section 17.1 or 17.2.  
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18. PROMOTERS 

Each of Messrs Basem Hanna, Michael Nashat and Vijay Sappani is a promoter of the Corporation within the meaning 
of applicable securities laws, each controlling 13.54%, 13.82% and 17.12% of the outstanding Common Shares, 
respectively. 

Other than the Production Facility, which was acquired by Solace from a company controlled in part by Mr. Hanna, 
no other asset has been acquired by TerrAscend Group from a promoter of the Corporation. 

Solace leased its Production Facility from ACLP 3610 Mavis Road Corp., a company controlled in part by Basem 
Hanna, President and Chief Executive Officer of Solace pursuant to a lease agreement dated September 1, 2014. 
ACLP 3610 Mavis Road Corp. initially acquired the property in August 2013 for a purchase price of $4.2 million. On 
January 31, 2017, pursuant to an agreement of purchase and sale, Solace purchased the property for $6,900,000 
and its lease agreement in respect of the property was terminated. Consideration for the purchase of the property 
was determined by reference to, an independent third party valuation report; maximum purchase price limit set by a 
third party financer (MMCAP International Inc. SPC) for the purchase of the property; and finally, the purchase price 
was approved by disinterested members of the board of directors of Solace. 

No promoter of the Corporation has, within 10 years prior to the date of this Listing Statement, been a director, chief 
executive officer, or chief financial officer of any person or company, that was subject to an order that was issued 
while the promoter was acting in such capacity, or was subject to an order that was issued after the promoter ceased 
to act in such capacity and which resulted from an event that occurred while the promoter was acting in such capacity.  

No promoter of the Corporation is, as at the date of this Listing Statement, or has been within the 10 years prior to 
the date of this Listing Statement, a director or executive officer of any person or company that, while the promoter 
was acting in that capacity, or within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a 
proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, 
arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets. 

No promoter of the Corporation has, within the 10 years prior to the date of this Listing Statement, become bankrupt, 
made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or become subject to or instituted any 
proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to 
hold the assets of the promoter. 

19. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

19.1 Legal Proceedings  

There are no legal proceedings TerrAscend Group is or was a party to, or that any of its property is or was the subject 
of, since the beginning of the most recently completed financial year for which financial statements of TerrAscend 
Group are included in this Listing Statement. 

19.2 Regulatory Actions 

There have not been any penalties or sanctions imposed against TerrAscend Group by a court relating to provincial 
or territorial securities legislation or by a securities regulatory authority, nor have there been any other penalties or 
sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body against TerrAscend Group, and TerrAscend Group has not entered 
into any settlement agreements before a court relating to provincial or territorial securities legislation or with a 
securities regulatory authority. 

20. INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS 

20.1 Interest of Management and Others in Material Transactions  

Except as described herein, no insider, director or executive officer of TerrAscend Group and no associate of any 
director, executive officer, or insider has any material interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction within the three 
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years before the date of this Listing Statement that has materially affected or is reasonably expected to materially 
affect TerrAscend Group.  

Solace leased its Production Facility from ACLP 3610 Mavis Road Corp., a company controlled in part by Basem 
Hanna, President and Chief Executive Officer of Solace, pursuant to a lease agreement dated September 1, 2014. 
On January 31, 2017, pursuant to an agreement of purchase and sale, Solace purchased the property for $6,900,000 
and its lease agreement in respect of the property was terminated. 

21. AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENTS AND REGISTRARS 

21.1 Auditors  

The auditor for the Corporation and Solace is MNP LLP of 111 Richmond Street West, Suite 300, Toronto, Ontario, 
M5H 2G4. 

21.2 Transfer Agent and Registrar  

The transfer agent and registrar for the Corporation’s securities is TSX Trust Corporation, at its principal office located 
at 200 University Ave, Suite 300, Toronto, Ontario, M5H 4H1. 

22. MATERIAL CONTRACTS 

Except for contracts made in the ordinary course of business, the following are the only material contracts entered 
into by TerrAscend Group (i) since the beginning of the last financial year ending before the date hereof, or (ii) before 
the beginning of the last financial year ending before the date hereof and still currently in effect: 

1. Collateral debenture of the Corporation for $9,648,160 in favour of MMCAP International Inc. SPC,.  

2. Agreement of purchase and sale between ACLP 3610 Mavis Road Corp. and Solace Health Inc. with 
respect to the purchase of the Production Facility. 

23. INTEREST OF EXPERTS 

No person or company whose profession or business gives authority to a report, valuation, statement or opinion made 
by such person or company and who is named in this Listing Statement as having prepared or certified a part of this 
Listing Statement, or a report, valuation, statement or opinion described in this Listing Statement, has received or 
shall receive a direct or indirect interest in any securities or other property of TerrAscend Group or any associate or 
affiliate of TerrAscend Group. 

MNP LLP has confirmed that it is independent of Solace within the meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct of 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario 

Certain legal matters in connection with this Listing Statement will be passed upon by Gowling WLG (Canada) LLP. 
As at the date hereof, the partners and associates of Gowling WLG (Canada) LLP, as a group, beneficially own, 
directly or indirectly, less than one percent of the outstanding securities of the Corporation. 

24. OTHER MATERIAL FACTS 

There are no other material facts that are not elsewhere disclosed herein and which are necessary in order for this 
document to contain full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to TerrAscend Group. 

25. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

25.1 Financial Statements of TerrAscend Group 
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This Listing Statement contains the opening audited financial statements for the Corporation as of March 7, 2017 and 
the audited financial statements of Solace prepared in accordance with IFRS, which have been included at Schedule 
A in this Listing Statement for the period from incorporation (February 18, 2014) to December 31, 2014, and for the 
years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2016.
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SCHEDULE A 
Financial Statements and MD&A 

 

 



TERRASCEND CORP.
Financial statements

As at March 7, 2017
(Date of Incorporation)

(In Canadian Dollars)



 

Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To the Shareholder of Terrascend Corp.:   
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Terrascend Corp., which comprise the statement of financial 
position as at March 7, 2017, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors' Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Terrascend Corp. 
as at March 7, 2017, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Toronto, Ontario 
March 9, 2017 

Chartered Professional Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants 

 
  

 

 



Terrascend Corp.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at March 7, 2017

Assets
Cash............................................................................................................................................................................. 1

1

Shareholder Equity
Share capital................................................................................................................................................................ 1

1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Subsequent events (note 5)

On behalf of the Board

“Basem Hanna” “Michael Nashat”
Director Director



Terrascend Corp.

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at March 7, 2017 (Date of Incorporation)

1. Incorporation and Nature of operations

Terrascend Corp. (“Terrascend” or the “Company”) was incorporated under the Ontario Business Corporations Act
on March 7, 2017. The head office and the registered head office of the Company is located at 3610 Mavis Road,
Mississauga, Ontario, L5C 1W2.

On March 9, 2017 the Board of Directors approved the opening statement of financial position as at March 7, 2017
(Date of Incorporation)

2. Basis of presentation

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and interpretations of the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
The Statement of Changes in Equity has not been included in these financial statements as they only include the
opening Statement of Financial Position at the date of incorporation.

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The Statement of Operations has not been included in these financial statements as they only include the opening
Statement of Financial Position at the date of incorporation.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
The Statement of Cash Flows has not been included in these financial statements as they only include the opening
Statement of Financial Position at the date of incorporation.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
All financial instruments are recorded initially at fair value. In subsequent periods, all financial instruments are
measured based on the classification adopted for the financial instrument: held to maturity, loans and receivables,
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), available for sale, FVTPL liabilities or other liabilities.

FVTPL assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value with the change in the fair value recognized in
net income (loss) during the period.

Held to maturity assets, loans and receivables, and other liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method.

Available for sale assets are subsequently measured at fair value with the changes in fair value recorded in other
comprehensive income (loss), except for equity instruments without a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, which are measured at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
As at March 7, 2017 (Date of Incorporation)

INCOME TAXES
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
only offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off the amounts, and the intention is to settle on a net basis, or
to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in
equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of comprehensive income.

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred
income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred income tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses. The
Company creates a valuation allowance to the extent that it considers deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses cannot be utilized.

MEASUREMENT UNCERTAINTY
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates used in the financial
statements.

FOREIGN CURRENCY
Functional currency: The financial statement is presented in Canadian dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

FUTURE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations have been issued but have not yet been
applied in preparing these financial statements, as set out below:

• IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities. The complete version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014. It replaces the guidance
in IAS 39 that relates to the classification and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS 9 retains but
simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three primary measurement categories for
financial assets: amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI) and fair value
through profit or loss. The basis of classification depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are required to be
measured at fair value through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at inception to present changes in
fair value in OCI not recycling. There is now a new expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred
loss impairment model used in IAS 39. For financial liabilities, there were no changes to classification and
measurement except for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in other comprehensive income, for
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. The standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018 and earlier adoption is permitted.

• IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, deals with revenue recognition and establishes
principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts with customers. Revenue is
recognized when a customer obtains control of goods or services and thus has the ability to direct the use
and obtain the benefits from the goods or services. The standard replaces IAS 18, Revenue, and IAS 11,
Construction Contracts, and related interpretations. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2018 and earlier adoption is permitted.

• In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16, Leases, which will replace IAS 17, Leases. Under IFRS 16, a
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Under IAS 17, lessees were required to make a distinction
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Notes to the Financial Statements
As at March 7, 2017 (Date of Incorporation)

between a finance lease and an operating lease. IFRS 16 now requires lessees to recognize a lease liability
reflecting future lease payments and a right-of-use asset for virtually all lease contracts. There is an
optional exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of low value assets; however, this exemption
can only be applied by lessees. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2019, with earlier application if IFRS 15 is also applied.

The Company has yet to assess the impact of these standards, however they are not expected to have a significant
impact on the Company’s financial statements at this time as the Company does not generate any revenue at this
time. Other accounting standards or amendments to existing accounting standards that have been issued, but have
future effective dates, are either not applicable or are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s
financial statements.

3. Share capital

The authorized share capital of the Company consists of an unlimited number of common shares.

On March 7, 2017, the Company issued 1 common share at $1 per share for total proceeds of $1.

4. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company’s objective when managing capital is to maintain its ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for the shareholder. The Company includes equity, comprised of issued common shares, in the
definition of capital.

RISK DISCLOSURES AND FAIR VALUES
The Company’s financial instruments, consisting of cash approximates fair value due to the relatively short term
maturities of the instrument.

It is management’s opinion that the Company is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks arising
from these financial instruments.

5. Subsequent Events

Subsequent to the date of incorporation, as part of a share exchange, the Company issued 26,978,240 common
shares of the Company in exchange for all of the issued and outstanding shares of Solace Health Inc.



1

TerrAscend Corp.

Management Discussion & Analysis
As at March 7, 2017 (Date of Incorporation)

Introduction

This MD&A is dated as of March 9, 2017, the date it was approved by the Board of Directors of TerrAscend 
Corp. (“TerrAscend” or the “Company”), and reflects all material events up to that date.

It should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited opening statement of financial position as at 
March 7, 2017 (Date of Incorporation), including the notes thereof. 

For reporting purposes, the Company prepares consolidated financial statements in Canadian dollars in 
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). Unless otherwise indicated, all dollar 
(‘‘$’’) amounts in this MD&A are expressed in Canadian dollars. 

Business Overview

TerrAscend was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) as “TerrAscend Corp.” on 
March 7, 2017. The Company’s registered and head office is located at 3610 Mavis Road, Mississauga, 
Ontario, L5C 1W2. 

Subsequent to the date of incorporation, as part of a share exchange, the Company issued 26,987,240 
common shares of the Company in exchange for all of the issued and outstanding shares of Solace Health 
Inc. (“Solace”).

Solace has applied to Health Canada to become a Licensed Producer under the Access to Cannabis for 
Medical Purposes Regulations (Canada) (the “ACMPR”). Solace submitted its application to become a 
Licensed Producer on March 14, 2014. 

The ACMPR licensing process includes six stages: Preliminary Screening, Enhanced Screening, Security 
Clearance, Review, Pre-Licence Inspection and Licensing.  Solace has completed the Review stage and 
has received a request for a Pre-Licence Inspection.

The market for cannabis (including medical marijuana) in Canada is regulated by the Controlled Drugs and 
Substances Act (Canada), the ACMPR, the Narcotic Control Regulations and other applicable laws. Health 
Canada is the primary regulator of the industry as a whole. The ACMPR aims to treat cannabis like any 
other narcotic used for medical purposes by creating conditions for a new commercial industry that is 
responsible for its production and distribution.
Any applicant seeking to become a licensed producer under the ACMPR is subject to stringent Health 
Canada licensing requirements. 
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Forward-Looking Statements

This MD&A contains forward-looking statements with respect to expected financial performance, strategy 
and business conditions. The words “believe”, “anticipate”, “estimate”, “plan”, “expect”, “intend”, “may”, 
“project”, “will”, “would” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements, 
although not all forward-looking statements contain these identifying words. These statements reflect 
management’s current beliefs with respect to future events and are based on information currently available 
to management. 

The forward-looking statements are contained principally in the sections entitled “Prospectus Summary”, 
“The Business”, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” and “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.

The forward-looking statements contained herein are based on certain key expectations and assumptions, 
including:

 the ability of the Company to generate cash flow from operations and obtain necessary financing 
on acceptable terms;

 general economic, financial market, regulatory and political conditions in which the Company 
operates;

 consumer interest in the Company’s products;
 the timely receipt of any required regulatory approvals, including approvals from Health Canada;
 competition;
 the ability of the Company to obtain qualified staff, equipment and services in a timely and cost 

efficient manner; and
 the ability of the Company to conduct operations in a safe, efficient and effective manner.

If any of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or if assumptions underlying the forward-looking 
statements prove incorrect, actual results might vary materially from those anticipated in those forward-
looking statements.

Information contained in forward-looking statements in this Prospectus is provided as of the date of this 
Prospectus, and we disclaim any obligation to update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result 
of new information or future events or results, except to the extent required by applicable securities laws. 
Accordingly, potential investors should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements or the 
information contained in those statements.
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Results of Operations

The Company raised $1 from the issuance of share capital as at March 7, 2017.

Selected Annual Information

Date of 
Incorporation

March 7,
2017

$

Total revenue -

Net income (loss) -

Basic and diluted loss per share -

Total assets 1

Long-term liabilities -

Working capital (deficit) 1

Dividends -

General and Administrative Expenses

The Company did not incur any general and administrative expenses as at March 7, 2017. Subsequent to 
the date of incorporation, as part of a share exchange, the Company issued 26,987,240 common shares 
of the Company in exchange for all of the issued and outstanding shares of Solace.

Selected Quarterly Financial Information

The Company did not prepare financial statements for those quarters prior to the date of this MD&A.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at March 9, 2017, TerrAscend had cash of $1, and working capital of $1. 

Financing activities

The Company raised $1 from the issuance of share capital as at March 7, 2017.

Liquidity

The Company’s objective with respect to its capital management is to ensure it has sufficient cash 
resources to maintain its ongoing operations and finance its research and development activities, corporate 
and administration expenses, working capital and overall capital expenditures. Since inception, the 
Company has primarily financed its liquidity needs through issuance of shares.

As at March 7, 2017 the Company did not have any liabilities.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

TerrAscend does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have, or are reasonably likely to have, 
a current or future effect on the results of operations or financial condition of TerrAscend, including, and 
without limitation, such considerations as liquidity and capital resources.
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Financial Instruments

The Company has classified its cash as fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL”). For additional 
information, refer to the audited financial statement of the Company as at March 7, 2017.

Transactions with related parties

TerrAscend did not have any transactions with related parties.

Commitments

TerrAscend does not have any commitments.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent to the date of incorporation, as part of a share exchange, the Company issued 26,987,240 
common shares of the Company in exchange for all of the issued and outstanding shares of Solace.

Accounting Changes

New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations have been issued but have 
not been adopted in preparing these financial statements, as set out below: 

 IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of 
financial assets and financial liabilities. The complete version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014. It 
replaces the guidance in IAS 39 that relates to the classification and measurement of financial 
instruments. IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three 
primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortized cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income (OCI) and fair value through profit or loss. The basis of classification 
depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial 
asset. Investments in equity instruments are required to be measured at fair value through profit or 
loss with the irrevocable option at inception to present changes in fair value in OCI not recycling. 
There is now a new expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model 
used in IAS 39. For financial liabilities, there were no changes to classification and measurement 
except for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in other comprehensive income, for liabilities 
designated at fair value through profit or loss. The standard is effective for accounting periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2018 and earlier adoption is permitted. 

 IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, deals with revenue recognition and establishes 
principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, 
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts with customers. 
Revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of goods or services and thus has the 
ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the goods or services. The standard replaces 
IAS 18, Revenue, and IAS 11, Construction Contracts, and related interpretations. The standard is 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 and earlier adoption is permitted. 

 In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16, Leases, which will replace IAS 17, Leases. Under IFRS 
16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Under IAS 17, lessees were 
required to make a distinction between a finance lease and an operating lease. IFRS 16 now 
requires lessees to recognize a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a right-of-use 
asset for virtually all lease contracts. There is an optional exemption for certain short-term leases 
and leases of low value assets; however, this exemption can only be applied by lessees. The 
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standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with earlier 
application if IFRS 15 is also applied. 

The Company has yet to assess the impact of these standards, however they are not expected to have a 
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements at this time as the Company does not generate 
any revenue at this time. Other accounting standards or amendments to existing accounting standards that 
have been issued, but have future effective dates, are either not applicable or are not expected to have a 
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Outstanding Share Data

As at March 9, 2017, 26,987,240 common shares were issued and outstanding.

Risk Factors

The Company’s overall performance and results of operations are subject to a number of risks and 
uncertainties. The Company is subject to certain risks and uncertainties from both financial and operational 
factors. The risks and uncertainties described below are those that the Company’s management believes 
are material, but these risks and uncertainties may not be the only ones that the Company may face. 
Additional risks and uncertainties, including those that the Company’s management currently are not aware 
of or deem immaterial, may also result in decreased operating revenues, increased operating expenses or 
other events that could result in a decline in the value of any securities of the Company. 

Some of the key risks are highlighted in the section entitled “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Directors of Solace Health Inc.:
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Solace Health Inc., which comprise the statements of financial
position as at December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, and the statements of loss and
comprehensive loss, changes in shareholders' deficiency and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015 and for the period from date of incorporation (February 18, 2014) to December 31, 2014, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Solace Health Inc. as
at December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, and its financial performance and its cash flows for
the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 and for the period from date of incorporation (February 18,
2014) to December 31, 2014 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Toronto, Ontario Chartered Professional Accountants

March 31, 2017 Licensed Public Accountants
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Solace Health Inc.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Nature of operations (note 1)

Commitments (note 9)
Subsequent events (note 12)

On behalf of the Board

“Basem Hanna” “Michael Nashat”

Director Director

Statements of Financial Position
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

December 31, December 31, December 31,

2016 2015 2014

Assets

Current assets

Cash 3,332,698$ 98,994$ 59,837$

Receivables 114,657 141,315 25,469

Prepaid expenses 19,065 157,153 297,016

3,466,420 397,462 382,322

Property and equipment (note 4) 400,771 141,680 -

3,867,191$ 539,142$ 382,322$

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 6 & 10) 818,343$ 269,446$ 104,360$

Due to related parties (note 6) 967,825 838,321 614,995

1,786,168 1,107,767 719,355

Shareholders' equity (deficiency)

Share capital (note 5) 4,046,840 530,011 3

Deficit (1,965,817) (1,098,636) (337,036)

2,081,023 (568,625) (337,033)

3,867,191$ 539,142$ 382,322$



2

Solace Health Inc.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

For the year ended For the year ended

From date of

incorporation

(February 18, 2014)

to

December 31, December 31, December 31,

2016 2015 2014

Expenses:

Rent 656,071$ 655,982$ 218,661$

Consulting fees 83,240 29,850 77,859

Professional fees 65,969 28,099 6,773

Utilities 29,565 22,914 11,402

Permits and licences 13,772 14,420 1,859

Office expense 8,762 5,293 16,053

Travel 4,717 2,914 2,041

Salaries and wages 3,342 - -

Advertising & promotion 1,120 2,014 2,194

Vehicle 379 522 169

Finance expense 253 205 34

Finance income (9) (1,801) (9)

Insurance - 1,188 -

Net loss and comprehensive loss (867,181)$ (761,600)$ (337,036)$

Net loss per share

Basic and diluted (0.09)$ (0.13)$ (0.11)$

Weighted average shares outstanding 9,491,445 5,761,852 3,000,000
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Solace Health Inc.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Deficiency
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

Share Capital Deficit Total

Balance, incorporation February 18, 2014 -$ -$ -$

Shares issued for cash 3 - 3

Net loss for the period - (337,036) (337,036)

Balance, December 31, 2014 3$ (337,036)$ (337,033)$

Cancellation of shares (2) - (2)

Shares issued for cash 530,010 - 530,010

Net loss for the year - (761,600) (761,600)

Balance, December 31, 2015 530,011$ (1,098,636)$ (568,625)$

Shares issued for cash 3,384,079 - 3,384,079

Shares issued for debt 92,700 - 92,700

Shares issued for services 40,050 - 40,050

Net loss for the year - (867,181) (867,181)

Balance, December 31, 2016 4,046,840$ (1,965,817)$ 2,081,023$



4

Solace Health Inc.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Statements of Cash Flows
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

For the year ended For the year ended

From date of

incorporation

(February 18, 2014)

to

December 31, December 31, December 31,

2016 2015 2014

Cash flow from operating activities

Net loss (867,181)$ (761,600)$ (337,036)$

Add (deduct) items not involving cash

Issuance of shares in exchange for services 40,050 - -

Change in non-cash working capital

Receivables (27,671) (57,512) (25,469)

Prepaid expenses 138,088 139,863 (297,016)

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 294,074 165,086 104,360

(422,640) (514,163) (555,161)

Cash flow from financing activities

Private placement of shares, net of issuance costs 3,438,408 471,674 3

Advances/repayment to related parties 222,204 223,326 614,995

3,660,612 695,000 614,998

Cash flow from investing activities

Investment in property and equipment (4,268) (141,680) -

(4,268) (141,680) -

Increase (decrease) in cash 3,233,704 39,157 59,837

Cash, beginning of period 98,994 59,837 -
Cash, end of period 3,332,698$ 98,994$ 59,837$

Supplementary cash flow information:

Investment in property and equipment included in accounts

payable (254,823)$ -$ -$
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1. Nature of operations

Solace Health Inc. (“Solace” or the “Company”) was incorporated under the Ontario Business Corporations Act.
The Company’s principal business activity is the cultivation and sale of medical cannabis. The Company has applied
to Health Canada to become a Licensed Producer under the Access to Cannabis for Medical Purposes Regulations
(Canada) (the “ACMPR”). The Company is in the development stage and has not yet earned any revenues.

2. Basis of presentation

(a) Statement of compliance

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

These financial statements were approved by the Company’s board of directors on March 31, 2017.

(b) Basis of presentation

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair value, as detailed in the Company’s accounting policies.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s functional currency, as determined by management is the Canadian dollar. These financial
statements are presented in Canadian dollars.

(d) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and revenue and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.
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3. Significant accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
the accompanying financial statements are set out below:

Property and equipment

Property and equipment, namely leasehold improvements, are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such costs include the cost of replacing parts of the property and equipment.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying value of the equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the
statement of loss and comprehensive loss as incurred.

No amortization is taken on assets under construction until the relevant asset has been put into use. An item of
equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset) is included in the statement of loss and comprehensive loss in the period the asset is
derecognized.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end, and
adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets with a finite useful life are tested for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Events relating to recoverability may include significant unfavorable
changes in business conditions, recurring losses, or a forecasted inability to achieve break-even operating results
over an extended period. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The Company evaluates impairment losses for potential reversals when events or
circumstances warrant such consideration.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the
assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

A derivative is a financial instrument whose value changes in response to a specified variable, requires little or no
net investment and is settled at a future date.

At initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories:

(i) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: a financial asset or liability is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the short-term. Derivatives are also
included in this category unless they are designated as hedges. Financial instruments in this category are
recognized initially and subsequently at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
presented in the statements of loss and comprehensive loss within other expense (income) in the period in which
they arise.

(ii) Loans and receivables: Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are initially recognized at the amount
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expected to be received, less, when material, a discount to reduce the loans and receivables to fair value.
Subsequently, loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method less a
provision for impairment.

(iii) Available for sale financial assets: Available for sale assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as available for sale and are not categorized into any of the other categories described above. They
are initially recognized at fair value including direct and incremental transaction costs. They are subsequently
recognized at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included as a separate
component of equity until sale, when the cumulative gain or loss is transferred to the statements of loss and
comprehensive loss. Interest is determined using the effective interest method, and impairment losses and
translation differences on monetary items are recognized in the statements of loss and comprehensive loss. The
Company does not have any available for sale assets.

(iv) Financial liabilities at amortized cost: Financial liabilities at amortized cost are composed of accounts payable.
Trade payables and accrued liabilities are initially recognized at the amount required to be paid, less, when
material, a discount to reduce payables to fair value. Subsequently, accounts payables are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. These are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within 12 months. Otherwise, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortized cost

At each statement of financial position date, the Company assesses whether there is objective evidence a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event), and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The asset’s carrying amount is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognized in the statements of
loss and comprehensive loss. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. For practical reasons, the Company may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

Loss per common share, basic and diluted

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the net loss for the period attributable to equity owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Contingently issuable
shares (including shares held in escrow) are not considered outstanding common shares and consequently are not
included in the loss per share calculations.

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for
dilutive instruments. The number of shares included with respect to options, warrants and similar instruments is
computed using the treasury stock method.
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Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the statements of loss and
comprehensive loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in shareholders’ equity, in which
case the income tax is also recognized directly in shareholders’ equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years.

In general, deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined on a non-
discounted basis using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the statements of
financial position dates and are expected to apply when the deferred tax asset or liability is settled. Deferred tax
assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable the assets can be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are presented as non-current.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.

New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations have been issued but have not yet been
applied in preparing these financial statements, as set out below:

• IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities. The complete version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014. It replaces the guidance
in IAS 39 that relates to the classification and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS 9 retains but
simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three primary measurement categories for
financial assets: amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI) and fair value
through profit or loss. The basis of classification depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are required to be
measured at fair value through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at inception to present changes in
fair value in OCI not recycling. There is now a new expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred
loss impairment model used in IAS 39. For financial liabilities, there were no changes to classification and
measurement except for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in other comprehensive income, for
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. The standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018 and earlier adoption is permitted.

• IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, deals with revenue recognition and establishes
principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts with customers. Revenue is
recognized when a customer obtains control of goods or services and thus has the ability to direct the use
and obtain the benefits from the goods or services. The standard replaces IAS 18, Revenue, and IAS 11,
Construction Contracts, and related interpretations. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2018 and earlier adoption is permitted.

• In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16, Leases, which will replace IAS 17, Leases. Under IFRS 16, a
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
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period of time in exchange for consideration. Under IAS 17, lessees were required to make a distinction
between a finance lease and an operating lease. IFRS 16 now requires lessees to recognize a lease liability
reflecting future lease payments and a right-of-use asset for virtually all lease contracts. There is an
optional exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of low value assets; however, this exemption
can only be applied by lessees. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2019, with earlier application if IFRS 15 is also applied.

The Company has yet to assess the impact of these standards, however they are not expected to have a significant
impact on the Company’s financial statements at this time as the Company does not generate any revenue at this
time. Other accounting standards or amendments to existing accounting standards that have been issued, but have
future effective dates, are either not applicable or are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s
financial statements.

4. Property and equipment

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the property and equipment were not in use, therefore no depreciation has been
taken.

Assets under

construction

Cost

At incorporation February 18, 2014 and December

31, 2014 -$

Additions 141,680

At December 31, 2015 141,680

Additions 259,091

At December 31, 2016 400,771$

Accumulated depreciation
At incorporation February 18, 2014 and December

31, 2014 -$

Expense for the year -

At December 31, 2015 -

Expense for the year -

At December 31, 2016 -$

Net book value

At incorporation February 18, 2014 and December

31, 2014 -$

At December 31, 2015 141,680$

At December 31, 2016 400,771$
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5. Shareholders’ equity

Authorized share capital

Class A Share – non-voting – unlimited
Class B Share – voting – unlimited
Common Share – voting – voting – unlimited

Outstanding share capital

December 31, 2014

During the period, the Company issued 3,000,000 common shares for gross proceeds of $3.

December 31, 2015

In June 2015, the Company exchanged 3,000,000 common shares for 7,785,000 Class B shares and 300 Class A
shares. Each Class A share includes the option to purchase Class B shares in tranches of 10,000 Class B shares at an
exercise price of $100 as part of a unanimous shareholders agreement. At the time of this agreement, the Company
had been authorized to issue up to 18,000,000 Class B shares. The Company also repurchased 1,531,000 Class B
shares for $2, which were subsequently cancelled.

In July 2015, the Company issued 2,296,000 Class B shares for gross proceeds of $480,010. In November 2015, the
Company issued a further 90,000 Class B shares for gross proceeds of $50,000. $58,334 of proceeds was receivable
as at December 31, 2015, which was subsequently collected.

December 31, 2016

In December 2016, the Company issued 90,000 Class B shares for services rendered valued at $40,050. In addition,
the Company issued 7,672,352 Class B shares for gross proceeds of $3,414,197, less issuance costs of $30,118.
$4,005 of proceeds was receivable as at December 31, 2016, which was subsequently collected.

The Company issued 9,270,000 Class B shares in settlement of $92,700 of debt due to related parties. The issuance
of shares was made pursuant to an option available under the unanimous shareholders agreement for Class A
shareholders to acquire Class B shares. Upon issuing these shares, the unanimous shareholders agreement was
amended to remove the option provided to Class A shareholders and removed the limit on the number of authorized
Class B shares.

Class A Shares Class B Shares Common Shares Amount

Balance, incorporation - - - $ -

Shares issued for cash - - 3,000,000 3

Outstanding, December 31, 2014 - - 3,000,000 3

Exchange of shares - 7,785,000 (3,000,000) -

Cancellation of shares - (1,531,000) - (2)

Shares issued for cash 300 2,386,000 - 530,010

Outstanding, December 31, 2015 300 8,640,000 - 530,011

Shares issued for cash - 7,672,352 - 3,384,079

Shares issued under unanimous shareholders agreement - 9,270,000 - 92,700

Shares issued for services - 90,000 - 40,050

Outstanding, December 31, 2016 300 25,672,352 - $ 4,046,840
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6. Related parties

(a) The Company was indebted to shareholders of the Company in the amount of $967,825 at December 31, 2016
(2015 - $838,321; 2014 - $614,995).

(b) During the year ended December 31, 2016, shareholders of the Company advanced $280,538 to the Company
interest-free with no fixed terms of repayment (2015 - $223,326; 2014 - $614,995).

(c) During the year ended December 31, 2016, shareholders of the Company were repaid $92,700 by the Company
via the issuance of shares (2015 - $nil; 2014 - $nil).

(d) During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company incurred $656,071 for rental of a property owned by a
corporation controlled by a director of the Company (2015 - $655,982; 2014 - $218,661). Unpaid rent of
$152,783 related to this lease was included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities at December 31, 2016
(2015 - $26,965; 2014 - $nil).

(e) Key management includes directors and officers of the Company. No compensation was awarded to key
management.

7. Capital management

The Company’s objective in managing capital is to ensure a sufficient liquidity position to safeguard the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.
In order to achieve this objective, the Company prepares budgets and capital requirements to manage its capital
structure. The Company defines capital as borrowings as detailed in note 6 and equity and borrowings, comprised of
issued share capital, share-based payments, accumulated deficit, as well as due to related parties.

Since inception, the Company has primarily financed its liquidity needs through issuance of shares and funding
received from related parties.

There have been no changes to the Company’s objectives and what it manages as capital since the prior fiscal year.
The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

8. Financial instruments and risk management

Financial instruments

The Company has classified its cash as fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL”), receivables as loans and
receivables, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities and due to related parties as other financial liabilities.

The carrying values of cash, receivables, due to related parties, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities
approximate their fair values due to their short periods to maturity.

Fair value hierarchy

Financial instruments recorded at fair value are classified using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of
inputs used in making the measurements. The hierarchy is summarized as follows:

Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities
Level 2 – inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (prices) or indirectly (derived from
prices) from observable market data
Level 3 – inputs for assets and liabilities not based upon observable market data
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Financial risk factors

The Company’s risk exposure and the impact on the Company’s financial instruments are summarized below:

(a) Credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash. The Company’s cash is held at a major Canadian bank. The Company regularly monitors the
credit risk exposure and takes steps to mitigate the likelihood of these exposures resulting in actual loss.

(b) Liquidity risk

The Company is exposed to liquidity risk or the risk of not meeting its financial obligations as they come due. The
Company constantly monitors and manages its cash flows to assess the liquidity necessary to fund operations. All of
the Company’s financial liabilities are due within one year.

(c) Interest rate risk

The Company is not subject to any significant interest rate risk from its liabilities, which are all non-interest bearing
instruments.

9. Commitments

Effective September 1, 2014, the Company entered into a lease for its principal premises for a term of ten years. The
term of the lease is non-cancellable. The Company has the option to extend the lease for an additional 5 year period
at the end of the initial term. The basic rent payments are as follows:

Within one year $ 493,533
Between one and five years 2,153,600
More than five years 1,435,733

$4,082,866

Subsequent to the year, the Company purchased the leased premises and the lease obligations were terminated (note
12).

10. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Trade payables and accrued liabilities $ 536,668 $ 57,345 $ 29,134

Deferred rent 281,675 212,101 75,226

Balance $ 818,343 $ 269,446 $ 104,360
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11. Income taxes

The reconciliation of the combined Canadian federal and provincial corporate income taxes at statutory rates 26.5%
(2015 - 26.5%) to the Company's effective income tax expense is as follows:

Deferred taxes are provided as a result of temporary differences that arise due to the differences between
the income tax values and the carrying amount of assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following temporary differences:

At December 31, 2016, the Company had Canadian non-capital loss carry forwards which may be available to offset
future year's taxable income. The losses expire as follows:

12. Subsequent events

Private placement

In January 2017, the Company issued 1,314,888 Class B common shares for gross proceeds of $585,125.

Convertible debenture

In January 2017, the Company issued a senior secured convertible debenture for gross proceeds of $9,400,000. The
convertible debenture bears interest at 12% per annum during the first 12 months and 18% per annum during the
period after the initial 12 months. The interest rate is reduced to 6% per annum on the date of a liquidity event such
as the shares of the Company being listed on a recognized stock exchange. The convertible debenture matures 18
months from the date of closing.

The convertible debenture is convertible at the option of the holder at $0.75 per share if the Company is granted its
license to cultivate from Health Canada on or before July 31, 2017. The debenture is convertible at $0.59 per share if
the Company does not receive a license to cultivate or is granted a license after July 31, 2017.

2016 2015 2014

Loss before income taxes 867,181$ 761,600$ 337,036$
Statutory rate 26.5% 26.5% 26.5%

Expected income tax recovery at combined basic federal and

provincial tax rate (229,803)$ (201,824)$ (89,315)$
Effect on income taxes of:

Non-deductible expenses 542 518 187
Change in tax benefits not recognized 229,261 201,306 89,127

Income tax recovery -$ -$ -$

2016 2015 2014
Non-capital loss carried forward 445,050$ 234,226$ 69,192$
Deferred rent 74,644 56,207 19,935
Deductible share issuance costs 7,981 - -

2034 261,103$

2035 622,773

2036 795,560

1,679,436$
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Property purchase

Subsequent to the period, the Company purchased the premises being leased by the Company for $6,899,900 in
cash.

Warrants

Subsequent to the year, the Company issued 2,173,913 warrants to purchase Class B shares at an exercise price of
$0.46 per share. The warrants vested upon the closing of the convertible debenture financing and expires on the later
of (i) 24 months; and (ii) 18 months from the day the Company’s shares are listed on a recognized securities
exchange.

Share capital

Subsequent to the year, the Company repurchased and cancelled all issued and outstanding Class A shares. In
addition, the Company amended its articles to remove its existing non-voting common shares and Class A shares,
and rename its Class B shares as ‘common shares’ of the Company.
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Solace Health Inc. 

Management Discussion & Analysis 
For the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 

Introduction 

This MD&A is dated as of March 31, 2017, the date it was approved by the Board of Directors of Solace 
Health Inc. (“Solace” or the “Company”), and reflects all material events up to that date. 

It should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2016 and 2015 and for the period from incorporation (February 18, 2014) to December 31, 
2014, including the notes thereof.  

For reporting purposes, the Company prepares consolidated financial statements in Canadian dollars in 
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). Unless otherwise indicated, all dollar 
(‘‘$’’) amounts in this MD&A are expressed in Canadian dollars.  

Business Overview 

Solace was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) as “Solace Health Inc.” on 
February 18, 2014. The Company does not have any subsidiaries. 

The Company has applied to Health Canada to become a Licensed Producer under the Access to 
Cannabis for Medical Purposes Regulations (Canada) (the “ACMPR”). The Company submitted its 
licence to become a Licensed Producer on March 14, 2014.  

The ACMPR licensing process includes six stages: Preliminary Screening, Enhanced Screening, Security 
Clearance, Review, Pre-Licence Inspection and Licensing.  The Company has completed the Review 
stage and has received a request for a Pre-Licence Inspection. 

The Company’s registered and head office is located at 3610 Mavis Road, Mississauga, Ontario, L5C 
1W2.  

The market for cannabis (including medical marijuana) in Canada is regulated by the CDSA, the ACMPR, 
the Narcotic Control Regulations and other applicable laws. Health Canada is the primary regulator of the 
industry as a whole. The ACMPR aims to treat cannabis like any other narcotic used for medical purposes 
by creating conditions for a new commercial industry that is responsible for its production and distribution. 
Any applicant seeking to become a licensed producer under the ACMPR is subject to stringent Health 
Canada licensing requirements.  
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Forward-Looking Statements 

This MD&A contains forward-looking statements with respect to expected financial performance, strategy 
and business conditions. The words “believe”, “anticipate”, “estimate”, “plan”, “expect”, “intend”, “may”, 
“project”, “will”, “would” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements, 
although not all forward-looking statements contain these identifying words. These statements reflect 
management’s current beliefs with respect to future events and are based on information currently 
available to management.  

The forward-looking statements are contained principally in the sections entitled “Prospectus Summary”, 
“The Business”, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” and “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus. 

The forward-looking statements contained herein are based on certain key expectations and 
assumptions, including: 

• the ability of the Company to generate cash flow from operations and obtain necessary financing 
on acceptable terms; 

• general economic, financial market, regulatory and political conditions in which the Company 
operates; 

• consumer interest in the Company’s products; 
• the timely receipt of any required regulatory approvals, including approvals from Health Canada; 
• competition; 
• the ability of the Company to obtain qualified staff, equipment and services in a timely and cost 

efficient manner; and 
• the ability of the Company to conduct operations in a safe, efficient and effective manner. 

If any of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or if assumptions underlying the forward-looking 
statements prove incorrect, actual results might vary materially from those anticipated in those forward-
looking statements. 

Information contained in forward-looking statements in this Prospectus is provided as of the date of this 
Prospectus, and we disclaim any obligation to update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result 
of new information or future events or results, except to the extent required by applicable securities laws. 
Accordingly, potential investors should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements or the 
information contained in those statements. 
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Results of Operations 

The Company is in the process of applying to Health Canada to become a Licensed Producer under the 
ACMPR. The Company submitted its application to become a Licensed Producer on March 14, 2014. The 
Company completed the required security clearance checks in March 2015. 

In March 2016, Solace received notification from Health Canada that, upon confirmation that the 
Production Facility and storage security measures are in place, are functional and comply with the 
requirements of the ACMPR and the Directive on Physical Security Requirements for Controlled 
Substances, Solace can request a Pre-Licence inspection. The issuance of a Licence to cultivate under 
the ACMPR is in part dependent upon the completion of a satisfactory inspection by Health Canada. 

Solace's proposed production facility (“Production Facility”) is a 67,300 square foot commercial building 
located in Mississauga, Ontario. When fully operational, the Production Facility will provide the Company 
with approximately 50,500 square feet of cultivation and production and processing space, 9,500 square 
feet devoted to research and development, and 7,300 square feet of office space. The Production Facility 
was acquired by Solace on January 31, 2017.  

On January 31, 2017, the Company acquired the Production Facility which is intended to serve as the 
Company’s initial facility for growing and cultivating medicinal cannabis.  

Selected Annual Information 

Year ended Year ended

Period from 
incorporation 
(February 18, 

2014) to 
December 31,

2016
$

December 31,
2015

$

December 31,
2014

$

Total revenue - - -

Net income (loss) (867,181) (761,600) (337,036)

Basic and diluted loss per share (0.09) (0.13) (0.11)

Total assets 3,867,191 539,142 382,322

Long-term liabilities - - -

Working capital (deficit) 1,680,252 (710,305) (337,033)

Dividends - - -

Year ended December 31, 2016 versus Year ended December 31, 2015 

Net loss

The Company reported a net loss for the year ended December 31, 2016 of $867,181. This is an increase 
from the prior year loss of $761,600. The Company ramped up operations in 2016 in anticipation of 
becoming a Licensed Producer, which resulted in an increase in consulting and professional fees 
compared to the prior year.  

Rent 

Rent expense remained consistent for the year ended December 31, 2016 at $656,071 as compared to 
the prior year at $655,982. Subsequent to the period in January 2017, the Company purchased the 
leased premises. 
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Consulting fees 

Consulting fees of $83,240 for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $53,390 higher than in 2015. This 
variance is attributable to increased consulting after receiving confirmation of completion of step 4 
(review) in the ACMPR licencing process. 

Professional fees 

For the year ended December 31, 2016, professional fees were $65,969 (2015 - $28,099). The increase 
is due to the Company preparing its books and records for raising financing and listing its securities on a 
recognized stock exchange. 

Utilities 

Utilities expenses for the year ended December 31, 2016 were $29,565, which is an increase from 
$22,914 in the prior year. The additional utility usage in 2016 is from the commencement of construction 
and improvements as part of the licensing process. The Company expects this cost to increase as the 
Production Facility is completed and is fully occupied. 

Permits and licences 

The cost of various permits and licences was $13,772 during the year ended December 31, 2016. This is 
consistent with the prior year of $14,420. 

Other general and administrative expenses 

Other general and administrative expenses include office expenses, travel, salaries and wages, 
advertising, and other office overhead charges. These expenses increased during the year ended 
December 31, 2016 compared to the prior year due to a ramp up in activities as the Company continues 
to progress through the Health Canada licensing process.  

Finance expense and Finance income 

Finance expenses and finance income for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were not 
significant. After issuance of the convertible debenture for $9.4 million in January 2017, the Company 
expects finance expense to increase for the year ended December 31, 2017. 

Year ended December 31, 2015 versus Period from incorporation (February 18, 2014) to 
December 31, 2014 

Net loss

The Company reported a net loss for the year ended December 31, 2015 of $761,600 compared to 
$337,036 in the period from incorporation to December 31, 2014. The Company’s financial results during 
2015 were mainly attributable to the rent charged on the Company’s leased premises of $655,982 during 
the year. 

Rent 

For the year ended December 31, 2015, rent was $655,982 as compared to the prior year period at 
$218,661. This increase is attributable to having a full year of rent expense, as the lease was entered into 
in September 2014.  
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Consulting fees 

Consulting fees of $29,850 for the year ended December 31, 2015 was lower than the period in 2014 of 
$77,859. This variance is attributable to increased consulting fees incurred in 2014 as part of the initial 
application for the licence under the ACMPR.  

Professional fees 

For the year ended December 31, 2015, professional fees were $28,099 (2015 - $6,773). The increase is 
due to the preparation of corporate documents and increased bookkeeping costs. 

Utilities 

Utilities expenses for the year ended December 31, 2015 were $22,914, which is an increase from 
$11,402 in 2014. The additional utility usage is mainly due to the occupancy of the leased premises for 
the entire year versus only a few months in 2014.  

Permits and licences 

The cost of various permits and licences was $14,420 during the year ended December 31, 2015. This is 
an increase from the prior period ended December 31, 2014 of $1,859 as the Company continues to 
progress through the Health Canada licensing process. 

Other general and administrative expenses 

Other general and administrative expenses include office expenses, travel, salaries and wages, 
advertising, and other office overhead charges. These expenses were higher in 2014 mainly due to some 
initial web development costs incurred by the Company.  

Finance expense and Finance income 

Finance expenses and finance income for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were not 
significant.  

Fourth Quarter

During the fourth quarter of 2016, the Company completed a private placement, issuing 17,032,352 Class 
B shares. In addition, the Company was preparing its books and records for raising financing and listing 
its securities on a recognized stock exchange, resulting in higher professional fees during the quarter.



6 

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased compared to prior years due to rent and a ramp up in 
activities as the Company continues to progress through the Health Canada licensing process. 

Selected Quarterly Financial Information

The Company did not prepare financial statements for those quarters prior to the date of this MD&A. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

As at December 31, 2016, Solace had cash of $3,332,698, and working capital of $1,680,252. 
Subsequent to the year, the Company raised $585,125 in equity private placements and commenced an 
additional private placement offering for gross proceeds of up to $1,350,000. Subsequent to the year, the 
Company also raised gross proceeds of $9.4 million through the issuance of a convertible debenture.  

Based on the Company’s historical performance to date and expected capital expenditures, management 
believes Solace has adequate cash resources to fund operations for the next 12 months.  

Operating activities

The principal use of operating cash flow is to fund the Company’s operating expenditures at its 
Production Facility as the Company continues to progress through the ACMPR licensing process. During 
the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company’s cash flows used in operations were $422,640 (2015 
– $514,163). Year over year, this variance is largely attributable to the changes in non-cash working 
capital, primarily an increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $294,074 in 2016. 

Cash flow used in operations in 2014 of $555,161 was similar to that used in 2015 even though there was 
a lower net loss during the period ended December 31, 2014. This is mainly due to the significant change 
in prepaid expense of $297,016 in 2014. 

Financing activities

The Company generated $3,660,612 of cash flows from financing activities during the year ended 
December 31, 2016 (2015 - $695,000). In 2016, the Company received $3,438,408 net of issuance costs 
from the issuance of shares, while another $222,204 was raised from non-interest bearing loans from 

For the year ended For the year ended

From date of 

incorporation 

(February 18, 2014) 

to

 December 31,  December 31,  December 31, 

2016 2015 2014

Rent 656,071$                  655,982$                  218,661$                  

Consulting fees 83,240 29,850 77,859

Professional fees 65,969 28,099 6,773

Utilities 29,565 22,914 11,402

Permits and licences 13,772 14,420 1,859

Office expense 8,762 5,293 16,053

Travel 4,717 2,914 2,041

Salaries and wages 3,342 - -

Advertising & promotion 1,120 2,014 2,194

Vehicle 379 522 169

866,937 762,008 337,011
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related parties. In 2015, the Company raised $471,674 from equity issuances and a further $223,326 as 
advances from related parties. In 2014, the majority of the $614,998 of cash flow from financing consisted 
of advances from related parties. 

Investing activities

Cash used in investing activities during the year ended December 31, 2016 was $4,268, compared to 
$141,680 in 2015 and $nil in 2014. Expenditures during both 2016 and 2015 relate to leasehold 
improvements made to the Production Facility. 

Liquidity 

The Company’s objective with respect to its capital management is to ensure it has sufficient cash 
resources to maintain its ongoing operations and finance its research and development activities, 
corporate and administration expenses, working capital and overall capital expenditures. Since inception, 
the Company has primarily financed its liquidity needs through issuance of shares and borrowing 
amounts due to related parties. 

The Company is exposed to liquidity risk or the risk of not meeting its financial obligations as they come 
due. The Company constantly monitors and manages its cash flows to assess the liquidity necessary to 
fund operations. All of the Company’s financial liabilities as at December 31, 2016 are due within one 
year. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

Solace does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a 
current or future effect on the results of operations or financial condition of Solace, including, and without 
limitation, such considerations as liquidity and capital resources. 

Financial Instruments

The Company has classified its cash as fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL”), receivables as loans 
and receivables, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and due to related parties as other 
financial liabilities. 

The carrying values of cash, receivables, due to related parties, and accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities approximate their fair values due to their short periods to maturity. 

For additional information, refer to the audited financial statements of Solace for the year ended 
December 31, 2016. 

Transactions with related parties 

Transactions with related parties were all recorded at their exchange amounts. 

• The Company was indebted to shareholders of the Company (Messrs. Hanna, Nashat, Sappani, 
and Deif) in the amount of $967,825 at December 31, 2016 (2015 - $838,321; 2014 - $614,995). 

• During the year ended December 31, 2016, shareholders of the Company (Messrs. Hanna, 
Nashat, Sappani, and Deif) advanced $280,538 to the Company interest-free with no fixed terms of 
repayment (2015 - $223,326; 2014 - $614,995). 

• During the year ended December 31, 2016, shareholders of the Company (Messrs. Hanna, 
Nashat, and Sappani) were repaid $92,700 by the Company via the issuance of shares (2015 - 
$nil; 2014 - $nil). 

• During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company incurred $656,071 for rental of a property 
owned by a corporation controlled by a director of the Company (Mr. Hanna) (2015 - $655,982; 
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2014 - $218,661). Unpaid rent of $152,783 related to this lease was included in accounts payable 
and accrued liabilities at December 31, 2016 (2015 - $26,965; 2014 - $nil). Rent was recorded at 
the exchange amount, adjusted for straight-line recognition of the expense. 

• Key management includes directors and officers of the Company. No compensation was awarded 
to key management. 

Commitments

Effective September 1, 2014, the Company entered into a lease for its principal premises for a term of ten 
years. The term of the lease is non-cancellable. The Company has the option to extend the lease for an 
additional 5 year period at the end of the initial term. The basic rent payments are as follows: 

Within one year  $   493,533 
Between one and five years     2,153,600 
More than five years    1,435,733 

$4,082,866 

In January 2017, the Company purchased the leased premises. 

Subsequent Events 

Private placement 

In January 2017, the Company issued 1,314,888 Class B common shares for gross proceeds of 
$585,125. 

Convertible debenture 

In January 2017, the Company issued a senior secured convertible debenture for gross proceeds of 
$9,400,000. The convertible debenture bears interest at 12% per annum during the first 12 months and 
18% per annum during the period after the initial 12 months. The interest rate is reduced to 6% per 
annum on the date of a liquidity event such as the shares of the Company being listed on a recognized 
stock exchange. The convertible debenture matures 18 months from the date of closing.  

The convertible debenture is convertible at the option of the holder at $0.75 per share if the Company is 
granted its license to cultivate from Health Canada on or before July 31, 2017. The debenture is 
convertible at $0.59 per share if the Company does not receive a license to cultivate or is granted a 
license after July 31, 2017. 

Property purchase 

Subsequent to the year, the Company purchased the premises being leased by the Company for 
$6,899,900 in cash. 

Warrants 

Subsequent to the year, the Company issued 2,173,913 warrants to purchase Class B shares at an 
exercise price of $0.46 per share. The warrants vested upon the closing of the convertible debenture 
financing and expires on the later of (i) 24 months; and (ii) 18 months from the day the Company’s shares 
are listed on a recognized securities exchange. 
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Share capital 

Subsequent to the year, the Company repurchased and cancelled all issued and outstanding Class A 
shares. In addition, the Company amended its articles to remove its existing non-voting common shares 
and Class A shares, and rename its Class B shares as ‘common shares’ of the Company. 

Accounting Changes

New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations have been issued but 
have not been adopted in preparing these financial statements, as set out below:  

• IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of 
financial assets and financial liabilities. The complete version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014. 
It replaces the guidance in IAS 39 that relates to the classification and measurement of financial 
instruments. IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three 
primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortized cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income (OCI) and fair value through profit or loss. The basis of classification 
depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the 
financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are required to be measured at fair value 
through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at inception to present changes in fair value in 
OCI not recycling. There is now a new expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred 
loss impairment model used in IAS 39. For financial liabilities, there were no changes to 
classification and measurement except for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in other 
comprehensive income, for liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. The standard 
is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 and earlier adoption is 
permitted.  

• IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, deals with revenue recognition and 
establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the 
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s 
contracts with customers. Revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of goods or 
services and thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the goods or 
services. The standard replaces IAS 18, Revenue, and IAS 11, Construction Contracts, and 
related interpretations. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 
1, 2018 and earlier adoption is permitted.  

• In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16, Leases, which will replace IAS 17, Leases. Under 
IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of 
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Under IAS 17, lessees were 
required to make a distinction between a finance lease and an operating lease. IFRS 16 now 
requires lessees to recognize a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a right-of-use 
asset for virtually all lease contracts. There is an optional exemption for certain short-term leases 
and leases of low value assets; however, this exemption can only be applied by lessees. The 
standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with earlier 
application if IFRS 15 is also applied.  

The Company has yet to assess the impact of these standards, however they are not expected to have a 
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements at this time as the Company does not generate 
any revenue at this time. Other accounting standards or amendments to existing accounting standards 
that have been issued, but have future effective dates, are either not applicable or are not expected to 
have a significant impact on the Company’s financial statements. 
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Outstanding Share Data 

As at December 31, 2016, 300 Class A shares and 25,672,352 Class B shares were issued and 
outstanding. No common shares were issued or outstanding. 

Risk Factors 

The Company’s overall performance and results of operations are subject to a number of risks and 
uncertainties. The Company is subject to certain risks and uncertainties from both financial and 
operational factors. The risks and uncertainties described below are those that the Company’s 
management believes are material, but these risks and uncertainties may not be the only ones that the 
Company may face. Additional risks and uncertainties, including those that the Company’s management 
currently are not aware of or deem immaterial, may also result in decreased operating revenues, 
increased operating expenses or other events that could result in a decline in the value of any securities 
of the Company.  

Some of the key risks are highlighted in the section entitled “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus. 
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CERTIFICATE OF THE CORPORATION 

Pursuant to a resolution duly passed by its Board of Directors, TerrAscend Corp., hereby applies for the listing of the 
above mentioned securities on the Exchange. The foregoing contains full, true and plain disclosure of all material 
information relating to TerrAscend Corp. It contains no untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state 
a material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to prevent a statement that is made from being false 
or misleading in light of the circumstances in which it was made. 

Dated at Toronto, Ontario this 26th day of April, 2017. 
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